N. A. SHAH ASSQOCIATES LLP

Chartered Accountants

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

To,
Tihe vMiembers of
Pallazzio Hotels & Leisure Limited

Report on the Ind AS Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying Ind AS financial statements of Pallazzio Hotels & Leisure Limited
(‘the Company’) which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31t March 2020, and the Statement of Profit and
Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the Cash Flow Statement and the Statement of Changes
in Equity for the year then ended and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information (together referred to as Ind AS financial statements).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid Ind AS financial stalements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’)
in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles
generally accepled in India including the Ind AS, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 318t March
2020, and its profit including other comprehensive income, its cash flows and the changes in equity for the
year ended on that date.

Basis of Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section
143(710) of the Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in
the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the Ind AS
financiai statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our
audit of the Ind AS financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context
of our audit of the Ind AS fihancial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do
not provide a separate opinion on these matters. We have determined that there are no key audit matter to
be communicated in our report.

Other Matters

Due to Covid-19 and consequent to lockdown, we could not be present during the physical verification of
inventory and cash carried out by the Company as at year end. We have relied on procedures for physical
verification of inventory and cash carried out by the Company. Our opinion is not modified in respect of this
matter.

Information Other than the Ind AS financial statements and Auditor’'s Report Thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors are responsible for the other information. The other information
obtained at the date of this auditor's report comprises of Board of Director's report, but does not include
the financial statements and our auditor's report thereon. %
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Our opinion on the financial statementgggrér‘se'ﬁ%q @b"‘\f}ec}%%agfﬁer information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed on the other information obtained prior to the date of this report,
we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that
fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of the Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial
Statements

The Company's Board of Directors are responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the
Companies Act, 2013 with respect to the preparation of these Ind AS financial statements that give a true
and fair view of the financial position, financial performance, cash flows and changes in equity of the
Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian
Accounting Standards (Ind AS) prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with Companies (Indian
Accounting Standard) Rules, 2015, as amended from time to time.

This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the
provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds
and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments
and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of
the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the Ind AS financial statements that
give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the Ind AS financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s
anility to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company
or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.
Auditor’'s Responsibility for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Ind AS financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of

these financial statements.

As a part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Ind AS financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.
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* Obtain an understandfng of internal ggﬁ?&??g%ﬁ%ﬁg%%ngﬁdit in order to design audit procedures that

are appropriate in the Circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for
expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial controls system in

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant aygit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal contro|
that we identify during our aygit

We also provide those charged with governance with g statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to Communicate with them al relationships anq other
Matters that May reasonably he thought to pear on our independence, and where applicable, relateq
Safeguards.

From the Mmatters Communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those Mmatters that
were of most signiticance in the audit of |ng AS financial Statements of the current period and are therefore

2. As required by Section 143 (3) of the Act, we report that:

a) We have sought and obtained gl the information and explanations Which to the best of our knowledge
and belief were necessary for the Purposes of oyr audit;




b)

c)

d)

h)

N. A. SHAH ASSOCIATES LLP

In our opinion, proper books of acc&]mgg?gad?r%ﬁ%&n@m?ave been kept by the Company so far as it
appears from our examination of those books;

The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including Other Comprehensive Income, the
Cash Flow Statement and Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with by this Report are in agreement
with the books of account;

In our opinion, the aforesaid Ind AS financial statements comply with the Indian Accounting Standards
specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31t March 2020 taken on
record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors are disqualified as on 31st March 2020 from
being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act;

With respect to adequacy of internal financial controls system over financial reporting of the Company
and operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate report given in Annexure Il; and

The Company has not paid or provided any managerial remuneration. Hence, reporting under section
197(16) of the Act is not applicable.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule 11 of
the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended form time to time, in our opinion and to
the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in its Ind
AS financial statements — Refer Note 27.1(b), 37(a), 37(b), 37(d) & 37(e) to the Ind AS
financial statements;

il. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which
there were any material foreseeable losses;

iii. There are no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company.

For N. A. Shah Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No: 116560W / W100149

LA

Prashant Daftary
Partner

Membership No.117080
UDIN: 20117080AAAABQ6092

Place: Mumbai
Date: 26" June, 2020
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Chartered Accountants

Pallazzio Hotels & Leisure Limited

Annexure | to Independent Auditor's Report for the year ended 31st March 2020
[Referred to in paragraph 1 under the heading “Report on other legal and regulatory requirements” of our
report of even date]

1. In respect of fixed assets:

(i)

The Company has maintained proper records substantially showing full particulars, including
quantitative details and situation of fixed assets, except in respect of certain items of furniture &
fixtures and plant & machinery at Hotel. As explained to us, the Company is in the process of
updating the required details in the fixed asset register. The said matter related to updating details
under progress was also reported in the previous year in para 1(i) of Annexure | to Independent
Auditor's Report dated 14" May 2019,

The Company has a phased programme for physical verification of fixed assets at hotel designed
to cover all the items at-least once over a period of three years from financial year 2017-18 to
2019-20, which, in our opinion, is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and nature
of its assets. In the previous year, the Company had conducted 100% physical verification of all
assets at hotel. Reconciliation of the substantial portion of fixed assets have been completed in
the current year. No material discrepancies were noticed in respect of assets reconciled. The
reconciliation is in progress with respect to certain items of furniture & fixtures and plant &
machinery. The said matter related to reconciliation under process was also reported in the
previous year in para 1(ii) of Annexure | to Independent Auditor's Report dated 14t May 2019.

In respect of other assets at the head office, the Company has carried out a physical verification
during the year and no material discrepancies were noticed in respect of the assets verified. In our
opinion, this periodicity of physical verification at head office is reasonable having regard to the
size of the Company and the nature of its assets.

(i) As stated in note 5 of the financial statements, conveyance and transfer formalities of the land

development rights purchased from the holding company on which the hotel building is
constructed are pending to be completed. Considering the same the title of the below mentioned
assets are not in the name of the Company.

(Rs. in lakhs)
Nature of immovable properties Number of Gross block as on Net block as on
cases 31t March 2020 315t March 2020
Land / FSI / development rights 1 32,110.50 | 32,110.50
Hotel building 1 51,365.44 42,589.85

The above matter was also reported in the previous year in para 1(iii) of Annexure | to
Independent Auditor's Report dated 14t May 2019. On account of the lockdown due to Covid-19
pandemic, we have relied on photocopies of agreement for purchase of land development rights
for above reporting.

The inventories have been physically verified during the year by the management. In our opinion, the

frequency of physical verification is reasonable. The discrepancies noticed on verification between
the physical stocks and the book records were not material. (Also refer other matters para of our audit
report).

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not granted any loans,

secured or unsecured to companies, firms, LLP or other parties covered in the register maintained
under Section 189 of the Act. Therefore, the requirements of clause (iii) (a) to (iii) (c) of paragraph 3
of the Order are not applicable to the Company.
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Chartered Accountants

Pallazzio Hotels & Leisure Limited

Annexure | to Independent Auditor's Report for the year ended 315t March 2020
[Referred to in paragraph 1 under the heading “Report on other legal and regulatory requirements” of our
report of even date]

4. During the year the Company has not granted any loans or made any investments or provided any
guarantees or securities covered under section 185 and section 186 of the Act. Therefore, question of
ensuring compliance with section 185 and 186 of the Act does not arise.

5. In our opinion and according to the information and explanation given to us, the Company has not
accepted any deposits within the meaning of section 73 to 76 of the Act and rules framed there under.
We are informed that no order relating to Company has been passed by the Company Law Board or
National Company Law Tribunal or Reserve Bank of India or any Court or any other Tribunal.

6. The Central Government has not prescribed maintenance of cost records under section 148(1) of the
Act for Hotel / Hospitality sector of the Company. Accordingly clause (vi) of paragraph 3 the Order is
not applicable to the Company.

7. (i) According to the information and explanations given to us, and on the basis of our examination of
the records of the Company, in respect of amounts deducted / accrued in the books of accounts, the
Company has been regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues including Income Tax, Sales Tax,
Duty of Custom, Value Added Tax, Cess and any other material statutory dues, as applicable to the
Company, during the year with the appropriate authorities except few delays in payment of Provident
Fund, Employees State Insurance Scheme, Tax Deduction at Source, Professional Tax, Maharashtra
Labour Welfare Fund and Goods and Services Tax. According to the information and explanation
given to us, no undisputed amounts payable in respect of statutory dues were in arrears, as at 31st
March 2020 for a period of more than six months from the date they became payable.

(i) According to the records of the Company and information and explanations given to us, there are
no disputed dues of Income Tax, Sales Tax, Goods and Services Tax, Service Tax, Custom Duty,
Wealth Tax, Excise Duty and Cess which have not been deposited with appropriate authorities on
account of any dispute except as mentioned below;

“Name of statute Nature of Dues Period to | Rs. in lakhs | Forum  where
which it dispute is
relates pending

Income Tax Act, | Income tax and | Aprii 11 to ~ 7.98* | Commissioner of

1961 interest & penalty | March 12 Income Tax

thereon (Appeal) (Refer
note 37(a))
Income Tax Act | Income tax and | Aprii 16 to 16.97 | Assistant
1961 interest & penalty | March 17 Commissioner of
thereon Income Tax
(Refer note
37(a))
“Maharashtra Tax on Luxury tax and | Aprii 13 to ' 34.59** | Joint
Luxuries Act, 1987 interest & penalty | March 14 Commissioner of
thereon Sales Tax
(Appeals) (Refer
note 37(d))

* Net of Rs. 2 lakhs paid under protest
** Net of Rs. 10 lakhs paid under protest
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Chartered Accountants

Pallazzio Hotels & Leisure Limited

Annexure | to Independent Auditor's Report for the year ended 315t March 2020
[Referred to in paragraph 1 under the heading "Report on other legal and regulatory requirements” of our
report of even date]

8.

10.

11.

12.

13.

14,

15.

Based on our audit procedures and the information and explanation given by the management, we
are of the opinion that the Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans to banks. The Company
has not taken any loans or borrowings from financial institution / government.

During the year, Compulsory Convertible Debentures (CCDs) are not due for conversion. Further,
coupon rate equivalent to dividend rate would be payable to CCD holders in case of declaration of
dividend to equity shareholders, however, during the year the Company has not declared any
dividend to equity shareholders. In respect of Optionally Fully Convertible Debentures (OFCD),
considering the terms of issue, no coupon is due. Considering these, the question of default does not
arise in respect of amount due to debenture holders.

During the year, the Company did not raise any money by way of initial public offer or further public
offer (including debt instruments). In our opinion and according to the information and explanations
given to us, on an overall basis, the term loans taken during the year have been applied for the
purpose for which they were obtained.

During the course of our examination of the books of account and records of the Company, carried
out in acco-dance with generally accepted auditing practices in India and according to the information
and explanations given to us, we have neither noticed nor have been informed by the management,
any incidence of fraud by the Company or on the Company by its officers or employees.

According to the information and explanation given to us and based on our examination of the
records, the Company has not paid / provided for managerial remuneration. Therefore, the provisions
of clause (xi) of paragraph 3 of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

The Company is not a Nidhi Company. Therefore, the provisions of clause (xii) of paragraph 3 of the
Order are not applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanation given to us and based on our examination of the
records, transactions with the related parties are in compliance with Section 177 and 188 of the Act
where applicable and the details of such transactions have been disclosed in the financial statements
as required by the applicable Ind AS — refer note 39 to the financial statements.

The Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or fully or partly
convertible debentures during the year. Therefore, question of our comment on compliance with
provisions of Section 42 of the Act does not arise.

in our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, during the year, the
Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected with
the directors. Therefore, the provisions of clause (xvi) of paragraph 3 of the Order are not applicable
to the Company.
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Chartered Accountants

Pallazzio Hotels & Leisure Limited

Annexure | to Independent Auditor's Report for the year ended 31t March 2020
[Referred to in paragraph 1 under the heading “Report on other legal and regulatory requirements” of our
report of even date]

16. The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act,
1934.

For N. A. Shah Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration NO:L6560W/W100149

T+

Prashant Daftary
Partner
Membership No: 117080 A
UDIN: 20117080AAAABQ6B092

Place: Mumbai
Date: 26% June, 2020
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Chartered Accountants

Pallazzio Hotels & Leisure Limited

Annexure Il to Independent Auditors’ Report for the year ended 315t March 2020

(Referred to in paragraph 2(f) under the heading of ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements'
of our report of even date.)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under section 143(3)(i) of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the
Act’)

Opinion

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Pallazzio Hotels & Leisure
Limited (“the Company”), as at 315t March 2020, in conjunction with our audit of the Ind AS financial
statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

[n our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial control system over
financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as
at 31% March 2020, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (‘the Guidance Note') issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India ('ICAI').

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for Internal Financial
Controls over Financial Reporting

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls
based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the
essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note, issued by ICAIl. These responsibilities
include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were
operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to
the Company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors,
the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial
information, as required under the Act.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial
reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note and the
Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAl and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Act, to
the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial
Controls and, both issued by the ICAl. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply
with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if such
controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal
financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls
over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the
design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected
depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the Ind
AS financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.
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Chartered Accountants

Pallazzio Hotels & Leisure Limited

Annexure Il to Independent Auditors’ Report for the year ended 315t March 2020

(Referred to in paragraph 2(f) under the heading of 'Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’
of our report of even date.)

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A Company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of ind AS financial statements
for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A Company's internal
financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the
maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and
dispositions of the assets of the Company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded
as necessary to permit preparation of Ind AS financial statements in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the Company are being made only in
accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the Company; and (3) provide reasonable
assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the
Company's assets that could have a material effect on the Ind AS financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

Becausc of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the
possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error
or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls
over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial
reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with
the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

For N. A. Shah Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm's registration number: 116560W / W100149

u—n@:‘}s‘}‘)
Prashant Daftary
’ TERED ACCOUNIAY

Partner ;
Membership number: 117080 To—
UDIN: 20117080AAAABQ6092
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Place: Mumbai
Date: 26" June, 2020



Pallazzio Hotels & Leisure Limited
CIN: U67120MH1995PLC085664
Balance Sheet as at 31st March 2020

(Rs. in lakhs) |
Particulars Note no. As at As at
31st March 2020 31st March 2019
ASSETS
1 |Non-current assets
a) Property, plant and equipment 5 89,006.41 93,759.58
b) Capital work-in-progress 6 - 45.28
¢) Other intangible assets 7 11.17 28.41
d) Financial assets
i) Investment 8 6.05 5.95
i) Other financial assets 9 2,754.53 1,011.00
e) Deferred tax assets (net) 10 - 381.58
f) Other non-current assets 11 4,748.83 4,553.09
(A) 96,526.99 99,784.89
2 |Current assets
a) Inventories 12 434.57 377.46
b) Financial assets
i) Trade receivables 13 1,469.52 1,706.33
ii) Cash and cash equivalents 14 525.48 603.75
i) Other financial assets 15 200.73 390.24
¢) Other current assets 16 264.51 264.74
(B) 2,894.81 3,342.52
TOTAL (A +B) 99,421.80 1,03,127.41
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
1 |Equity
a) Equity share capital 17 1,200.00 1,200.00
b) Other equity 18 35618.27 34,337.04
(A) 36,818.27 35,537.04
Liabilities
2 |Non-current liabilities
a) Financial liabilities
i) Borrowings 19 42,354.10 47,812.43
ii) Other financial liabilities 20 36.50 16.50
b) Provisions 21 154.02 139.05
¢) Other non-current liabilities 22 338.28 363.31
(B) 42,882.90 48,331.29
3 |Current liabilities
a) Financial liabilities
i) Borrowings 23 1,861.00 1,861.00
ii) Trade payables 24
- Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small 53.84 27.74
enterprises
- Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises 2,037.32 2,636.36
and small enterprises
iiiy Other financial liabilities 25 2,737.99 2,328.90
b) Other current liabilities 26 6,728.76 6,991.77
¢) Provisions 27 6,301.72 5,413.31
(C) 19,720.63 19,259.08
TOTAL (A+B+C) 99,421.80 1,03,127.41
Notes 110 53

The notes referred to above form an integral part of the Financial Statements
As per our audit report of even date

For N. A. Shah Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 116560W / W100149
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Prashant Daftary -0 * 'l~
Partner
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Prashant Khandelwal
Chief Financial Officer

Place: Mumbal

pate: 25 JUN 2090

Pradumna Kanodia
Director
DIN:01602690

Ww/uf

it Dewan
Company Secretary
M. No. ACS 31131




Pallazzio Hotels & Leisure Limited
CIN: U67120MH1995PLC085664
Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31st March 2020

(Rs. in lakhs) |

Particulars Note no. | For the year ended For the year ended

31st March 2020 31st March 2019
Revenue from operations 28 30,890.01 30,420.57
Other income 29 242.84 82.63
Total revenue (A) 31,132.85 30,503.20
Food and beverages consumed 30 3,5601.96 3,609.85
Other operating cost 3 7,909.21 7,623.81
Personnel expenses 32 4,304.45 4,128.16
Selling and marketing experises 33 1,256.28 970.80
Administrative and other expenses 34 2,594.26 2,428.49
Total expenses excluding finance costs, depreciation, exceptional items and 19,566.16 18,761.11
tax (B)
Profit before finance costs, depreciation, exceptional items and tax (C)=(A)- 11,566.69 11,742.09
(B)
Finance costs 35 4,668.74 5,159.35
Depreciation and amortization expenses 5&7 5,312.14 5,346.96
Total finance cost and depreciation and amortization expense (D) 9,980.88 10,506.31
Profit before exceptional items and tax (E)=(C)-(D) 1,585.81 1,235.78
Add / (Less).- Exceptional Items (F) 19.4 - 4,809.89
Profit before tax (G)=(E)-(F) 1,585.81 6,045.67
Tax expense: (H)

- Deferred tax credit / (charge) 10 (363.64) 415.90
Profit after tax (1)=(G)-(H) 1,222.17 6,461.57
Other comprehensive income (J)

(i) items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss 40 71.27 (11.29)
(ii) Income tax relating to item that will not be reclassified to profit or loss (17.94) (34.32)
Total comprehensive income for the year (K)=(l)+(J) 1,275.50 6.415.96
Basic and diluted earnings per share 43
Basic earnings per share 22.98 121.48
Diluted earnings per share 13.39 75.32
Notes 1to 53

The notes referred to above form an integral part of the Financial Statements

As per our audit report of even date

For N. A. Shah Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No. 116560W / W100149

Prashant Daftary '
Partner
Membership No. : 117080

Place:%mmi& QQZ.Q

Date:

For and on behalf of the Board of Direg¢tors of

Pallazzi

n Parwal
ector
DIN:07586435

ICL o St L

Prashant Khandelwal

otels & Leisure Limited

Chief Financial Officer

Place: Mumbai

Date: 25 JIN "N

Pradumna Kan_o-c'iia
Director
DIN:01602690

M
/Q“MK’YM
Ankit Dewan
Company Secretary

M. No. ACS 31131




Pallazzio Hotels & Lelsure Limlited
CIN: U67120MH1995PLC085664

Standalone Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 31st March 2020

(Rs. in lakhs)

Particulars

Note Year ended
31st March 2020

Year ended
31st March 2019

CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit before tax

Adjustments for:

Depreciation and amortizalion expenses

Finance costs (excluding credit card commission)
Dividend income

Interest income

Bad debts (net)

Allowance for doubiful debts

Employee stock option expenses

Loss on sale / discard of fixed assets (net)

Reversal of premium on redemption of non-convertible debentures
(classified under exceptional item in he previous year)
Unrealised foreign exchange fluctuation loss (net)

Operating proflt before Working Capltal Changes
Adjustments for:

Trade receivable, inventories, other current and non current assels
Trade payable, other currenl and non current liabilities / provisions

Less : Tax (paid) / refund (including withholding tax and interest on Income

tax refund) (nel of refund) (Refer note 48 (a))
Net Cash Flow generated from / {used In) Operating Actlvitles

CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Purchase of property, planl & equipment and intangible assets (including
advances and net of craditors)

Sale of property, plant & equipment

Interest received

Income laxes (paid) / refund [including withholding tax] on interest (Refer
nole 48 (a))

Investments in National Saving Certificate

Dividend income

Fixed deposits (under lien) made

Fixed deposits (under lien) matured

Net Cash generated from / {used in) Investing Activitles
CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Finance cost

Secured loan taken

Secured loan repaid

Net Cash generated from / (used In) Financing Actlvities

Net Increase / (Decrease) In Cash and Cash equivalents {(A+ B+C)

Cash and Cash equivalents at beginning of the year (Refer note 14)
Cash and Cash equivalents at end of the year (Refer note 14)
Add: Difference due to realignment of foreign currency on hand

Net Increase / {Decrease) In Cash and Cash equivalents

Notes

The notes referred to above form an integral part of the financial statements

As per our audit report of even date

For N. A. Shah Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No: 116560w / W100149

Prashant Dattary
Partner

Membership No. : 117080

( MUMBAI
‘,—3

AT TERED AECOuUL
Place: Mumbai - -

P 9 6 JUN 200

(g
run Parwal

Director
DIN:07586435

Prashant Khnndslwal
Chief Financial Officer

Place: Mumbai

Date: @5 JUN 200

1,585.81 6,045.67
5312.14 5,346.96
4,389.01 491582
(0.53) (0.57)
(203.52) (82.06)

- 7.47

46.45 68.91
5.73 10.60

3.62 77.39
- (4,809.89)

47.09 7.46
11,185.80 11,587.76
(651.24) (940.16)
211.59 2,680.50
331.27 464.75
11,077.42 13,792.85
(555.65) (677.36)
11.11 6,04
92.84 9.36
38.58 19.76
(0.10) =
0.53 0.57
(1,364.05) (161.52)
188.48 312.33
{1,588.26) {390.82)
(4,178.37) (5,054.89)
40,376.01 -
(45,765.09) (8,464.18)
(9,567.45) {13,519.07)
178.29) (117.04)
603.76 720.95
525.48 603.75
(0.02) 0.16
525.46 603.91
{78.29) (117.04)
1to 563
For and'ph.behalf of the Board of Direct: 1
llazzio\Hotels & Leisure Limited

Pradumna Kanodia
Director
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./
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Company Secretary
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Pallazzio Hotels and Leisure Limited
Notes to financial statement for the year ended 31%' March 2020

1.

21,

2.2,

23.

2.4.

Company overview, nature of entity's operations and its principal activities

Pallazzio Hotels and Leisure Limited (the “Company”) is a limited company domiciled and
incorporated in India. The registered office of the Company is located at 426, Senapati Bapat
Marg, Lower Parel, Mumbai — 400013, India. The Company is subsidiary of the Phoenix Mills
Limited which is a listed entity.

The Company is in the hospitality business. Currently, it owns hotel at lower parel and it has
entered into a management agreement with Starwood Hotels & Resorts India Private Limited for
managing the routine operations of the hote! under the brand name “St. Regis”".

The financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31st March 2020 were approved and
adopted by board of directors of the Company in their meeting dated 25t June 2020.

Basis of preparation
Statement of Compliance

The financial statements (on standalone basis) of the Company have been prepared in
accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (ind AS) notified under Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and relevant amendment rules issued thereafter. The
Company has consistently applied the accounting policies except where a new accounting
standard is initially adopted or a revision to an existing accounting standard requires a change in
the accounting policy hitherto in use.

Functional and presentation of currency

The financial statements are prepared in Indian Rupees which is also the Company's functional
currency. All amounts are rounded to the nearest rupees in lakhs.

Basis of measurement

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis except for the following
assets and liabilities which are measured at fair value:

i) Certain financial assets and financial liabilities measured at fair value (refer accounting policy
regarding financial instruments).

i) Defined benefit plans — plan assets measured at fair value.

ili) Share based payments.

Use of significant accounting estimates, judgements & assumptions and key sources of
estimation uncertainty

The preparation of the financial statements requires management to make estimates, judgements
and assumptions that affect the reported balances of assets and liabilities, disclosure of contingent
liabilities as on the date of financial statements and reported amounts of income and expenses
during the period. Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes
that require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets or liabilities affected in future

periods.




Pallazzio Hotels and Leisure Limited
Notes to financial statement for the year ended 315t March 2020

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the
reporting date, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are described below. The Company based its
assumptions and estimates on parameters available when the financial statements were prepared.
Existing circumstances and assumptions about future developments, however, may change due to
market changes or circumstances arising that are beyond the control of the Company. Such
changes are reflected in the assumptions when they occur.

i)

i)

iii)

Property, plant & equipment and Intangible assets

The Company has estimated the useful life, residual value and method of depreciation /
amortisation of property, plant & equipment and intangible assets based on its internal
technical assessment. Property, plant & equipment and intangible assets represent a
significant proportion of the asset base of the Company. Further the Company has estimated
that scrap value of property, plant & equipment would be able to cover the residual value &
decommissioning costs of property, plant & equipment.

Therefore, the estimates and assumptions made to determine useiful life, residual value,
method of depreciation / amortisation and decommissioning costs are critical to the
Company’s financial position and performance.

Contingencies

Management judgement is required for estimating the possible outflow of resources, if any, in
respect of contingencies / claim / litigations against the Company as it is not possible to
predict the outcome of pending matters with accuracy.

Recognition of deferred tax asset

Deferred tax assets are recognised only to the extent that it is probable that future taxable
profit will be available against which such deferred tax assets can be utilized. Currently, the
Company has recognised the deferred tax on unused tax losses / unused tax credits only to
the extent of reasonable certainty. Any increase in probability of future taxable profit will result
into recognition of unrecognised deferred tax assets.

Measurement of defined benefit plan & other long term benefits

The cost of the defined benefit gratuity plan / other long term benefits and the present value
of the gratuity obligation / other long term benefits are determined using actuarial valuations.
An actuarial valuation involves making various assumptions that may differ from actual
developments in the future. These include the determination of the discount rate, future
salary increases and mortality rates. Due to the complexities involved in the valuation and its
long-term nature, a defined benefit obligation / other long term benefits is highly sensitive to
changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date.

Optionally Fully Convertible Debentures (OFCD) and Optionally Convertible Debentures
(OCD)

An issuer of a financial instrument shall classify the instrument or its component parts on
initial recognition as a financial liability, financial asset or an equity instrument in accordance
with the substance of the contractual arrangement and definition of financial liability, financial
asset and an equity instrument. With respect to OFCD / OCD issued by the Company, which
are convertible into fixed number of equity shares at fixed price and at the option of the
Company, meet the definition of equity based on the management judgement that it would
exercise the option of conversion.




Pallazzio Hotels and Leisure Limited
Notes to financial statement for the year ended 31%t March 2020

2.5,

3.1.

vi)  Estimation uncertainty relating to global health pandemic Covid-19

Uncertainty related to Covid-19 and the Company’s assessment for its potential impact on the
business is given in note 49 of financial statements.

Fair value measurement

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an
orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. A fair value
measurement assumes that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place
either in the principal market for the asset or liability or in the absence of a principal market, in the
most advantageous market for the asset or liability. The principal market or the most
advantageous market must be accessible to the Company.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants
would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their
economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s ability
to generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to
another market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which
sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximizing the use of relevant observable
inputs and minimizing the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements
are categorized within the fair value hierarchy based on the lowest level input that is significant to
the fair value measurement as a whole. The fair value hierarchy is described as below:

Level 1 — unadjusted quoted price in active markets for identical assets and liabilities.

Level 2 - Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset
or liability, either directly or indirectly

Level 3 ~ unobservable inputs for the asset or liability

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements at fair value on a recurring
basis, the Company determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy
by re-assessing categorization at the end of each reporting period.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and
liabilities on the basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of
fair value hierarchy.

Significant Accounting Policies

Presentation and disclosure of financial statements

All assets and liabilities have been classified as current and non-current as per Company's normal
operating cycle and other criteria set out in the division Il of Schedule Ill of the Companies Act,
2013, for a company whose financial statements are made in compliance with the Companies
(India Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and relevant amendment rules issued thereafter.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities.



Pallazzio Hotels and Leisure Limited
Notes to financial statement for the year ended 315 March 2020

3.2,

Based on the nature of service i.e. hospitality and the time between rendering of services and their
realization in cash and cash equivalents, 12 months has been considered by the Company for the
purpose of current / non-current classification of assets and liabilities.

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

i)

iii)

iv)

v)

Vi)

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost of acquisition less accumulated depreciation
and accumulated impairment losses, if any. Gross carrying amount of all property, plant and
equipment are measured using cost model. High end operating supplies acquired prior to
commencement of the hotel operations and opening of new restaurants / outlets are
considered as a part of property, plant and equipment. Cost of property, plant and equipment
includes non-refundable taxes and duties, borrowing cost directly attributable to the qualifying
asset and any directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to its working condition for its
intended use and the present value of the expected cost for the dismantling /
decommissioning of the asset.

Parts (major components) of an item of property, plant and equipments having different
useful lives are accounted as separate items of property, plant and equipments. When
significant parts of property, plant and equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the
Company derecognises the replaced part, and recognises the new part with its own
associated useful life.

Capital work-in-progress comprises of cost incurred on property, plant and equipment under
construction / acquisition that are not yet ready for their intended use at the balance sheet
date. Ready to use items like gym equipments etc. are considered as a part of capital work-
in-progress / project cost as it can be used only when hotel starts operations and are
capitalized along with other assets as and when hotel commences operations.

Pre-operation expenses (net of revenue) and borrowing cost directly attributable to the cost of
construction of the qualifying asset are treated as part of the project cost and are capitalized /
allocated to the cost of fixed asset in the year in which the project is completed.
Administrative and other expenses which are not directly related to construction are charged
to statement of profit and loss.

Property, plant and equipment are eliminated from financial statement, either on disposal or
when retired from active use. Losses arising in the case of retirement of property, plant and
equipment and gains or losses arising from disposal of property, plant and equipment are
recognised in the statement of profit and loss in the year of occurrence.

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment

a) Depreciation on property, plant and equipment (other than freehold land and capital work
in progress) is provided on straight line basis over the useful life of the relevant assets
net of residual value whose life is in consonance with the life mentioned in Schedule Il of

the Companies Act, 2013 except;

a) in respect of servers and networks where the Company has estimated useful life of 3
years being lower than the useful life of 6 years as prescribed under Part C of
Schedule 1! of the Companies Act, 2013, based on its internal technical assessment.

b) individual assets whose cost does not exceed five thousand rupees has been
provided fully in the year of capitalization.

b) High end operating supplies referred to in note 3.2(i) above are depreciated over a period
of three years on straight line method being its estimated useful life.
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Pallazzio Hotels and Leisure Limited
Notes to financial statement for the year ended 315t March 2020

3.3.

3.4.

3.5.

3.6.

c) Inthe case of assets purchased, sold or discarded during the year, depreciation on such
assets is calculated on pro-rata basis from the date of such addition or as the case may
be, upto the date on which such asset has been sold or discarded.

d) The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and
equipment are reviewed at each balance sheet date and in case of any changes, effect of
the same is given prospectively.

Intangible assets and amortization

i) Intangible assets are stated at cost of development or consideration paid for acquisition less
accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment loss, if any. Intangible assets are
recognised only if it is probable that the future economic benefits attributabie to the asset will
flow to the enterprise and the cost of asset can be measured reliably.

i) Intangible assets comprise of computer software and is amortised over its useful life which is
presently estimated to be 5 years.

iify  The useful lives and methods of amortisation of intangible assets are reviewed at each
balance sheet date and in case of any changes, effect of the same is given prospectively.

Impairment of non-financial assets

The carrying amounts of assets are reviewed at each balance sheet date for any indication of
impairment based on internal / external factors. An impairment loss is recognised wherever the
carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the
higher of a) fair value of assets less cost of disposal and b) its value in use. Value in use is the
present value of future cash flows expected to derive from an assets or Cash-Generating Unit
(CGU).

Based on the assessment done at each balance sheet date, recognised impairment loss is further
provided or reversed depending on changes in circumstances. After recognition of impairment loss
or reversal of impairment loss as applicable, the depreciation charge for the asset is adjusted in
future periods to allocate the asset’s revised carrying amount, less its residual value (if any), on a
systematic basis over its remaining useful life. If the conditions leading to recognition of
impairment losses no longer exist or have decreased, impairment losses recognised are reversed
to the extent it does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined after
considering depreciation / amortisation had no impairment loss been recognised in earlier years.

Inventories

Inventories comprises of stock of food, beverages, stores and operating supplies and are valued at
lower of cost (computed on weighted average basis) or net realizable value. Purchase of operating
supplies (other than initial acquisition during the pre-commencement of the hotel and
commencement of new restaurants / outlets as referred to in note 3.2(i) above) is charged to
statement of profit and loss in the year of consumptions. The Cost comprises of cost of purchases,
duties and taxes (other than those subsequently recoverable) and other costs incurred in bringing
them to their present location and condition. Cost of inventories is arrived at after providing for cost
of obsolescence.

Financial instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a
financial liability or equity instrument of another entity.
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Notes to financial statement for the year ended 315! March 2020

i)

Financial assets

a)

Initial recognition and measurement

All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets
not recorded at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are attributable to
the acquisition of the financial asset. Purchase or sale of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within a time frame established by regulation or convention in the
market place (regular way trades) are recognised on the trade date, i.e., the date that the
Company commits to purchase or sell the asset.

Subsequent measurement

For the purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in following
categories:

Debt instruments at amortised cost

A ‘debt instrument’ is measured at the amortised cost if both the following conditions
are met:

= Financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets
for collecting contractual cash flows and

= Contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows
that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount
outstanding

After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the Effective Interest Rate (EIR) method. Amortised cost is
calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or
costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included in finance
income in the statement of profit or loss. The losses arising from impairment are
recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

Debt instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)
A 'debt instrument’ is classified at the FVTOCI if both of the following criteria are met

= Financial asset is held with the business model whose objective is achieved both
by collecting contractual cash flows and selling the financial assets and

» Contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows
that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount
outstanding

After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at fair
value and fair value movements are recognised in other comprehensive income.
However, interest income, impairment losses & reversal of impairment losses and
foreign exchange gain or loss is recognised in the statement of profit and loss. On
derecognition of the asset, cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in other
comprehensive income is reclassified from the equity to statement of profit and loss.
Interest earned whilst holding FVTOCI debt instrument is reported as interest income
using the effective interest method.
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Debt instruments at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)

FVTPL is a residual category for debt instruments. Any debt instrument, which does
not meet the criteria for categorization at amortised cost or at FVTOCI, is classified at
FVTPL.

in addition, the Company may elect to designate a debt instrument, which otherwise
meets amortised cost or FVTOCI criteria, at FVTPL. However, such election is
allowed only if doing so reduces or eliminates a measurement or recognition
inconsistency (referred to as ‘accounting mismatch’).

Debt instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with
all changes recognised in the statement of profit and loss. The Company has not
designated any debt instrument at FVTPL.

Equity instruments measured at fair value

All equity instruments are measured at fair value in the balance sheet, with value
changes recognised in the statement of profit and loss except for those equity
instruments for which the entity has elected to present value changes in other
comprehensive income. The Company makes such election on an instrument by
instrument basis. The classification is made on initial recognition and is irrevocable.

If the Company decides to classify an equity instrument at FVTOCI, then all fair value
changes on the instrument, excluding dividends, are recognised in the other
comprehensive income. There is no recycling of the amounts from other
comprehensive income to statement of profit and loss, even on sale of investment.

However, the Company may transfer the cumulative gain or loss within equity. The
Company has not designated any equity instrument at FVTOCI.

c) Derecognition

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a similar
financial assets) is primarily derecognised (i.e. removed from the Company's balance
sheet) when:

The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired or

The Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has
assumed an obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to
a third party under a ‘pass-through’ arrangement; and either

» the Company has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset
or

= the Company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and
rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset

When the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or
has entered into a pass-through arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent it has
retained the risks and rewards of ownership. When it has neither transferred nor
retained substantially all of the risks and rewards of the asset, nor transferred control
of the asset, the Company continues to recognise the transferred asset to the extent
of the Company’s continuing involvement. In that case, the Company also recognises
an associated liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability are
measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the Company has
retained.
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d)

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset
is measured at the lower of the original carrying amount of the asset and the
maximum amount of consideration that the Company could be required to repay.

Impairment of financial assets

The Company assesses impairment based on Expected Credit Losses (ECL) model to
the followings:

o Financial assets measured at amortised cost

* Financial assets measured at fair value through other comprehensive income
(FVTOCI)

Expected credit losses are measured through a loss allowance at an amount equal to:

* 12 months ECL (ECL that result from those default events on the financial
instruments that are possible within 12 months after the reporting date) or

» Full lifetime ECL (ECL that result from all possible default events over the life of the
financial instruments)

The Company follows ‘simplified approach’ for recognition of impairment loss allowance
on:
e Trade receivable & unbilled revenue and

e All lease receivable

Under simplified approach, the Company does not track changes in credit risk. Rather, it
recognises impairment loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date,
right from its initial recognition.

Further individual trade receivables are provided / written off when management deems
them not be collectible. At every reporting date, the historical observed default rates are
updated and changes in the forward-looking estimates are analysed.

ECL impairment loss allowance (or reversal) recognised during the period is recognised
as expense / income in the statement of profit and loss. The balance sheet presentation
for various financial instruments is described below:

» Financial assets measured at amortised cost: ECL is presented as an allowance, i.e.,
as an integral part of the measurement of those assets in the balance sheet. The
allowance reduces the net carrying amount of assets. Until the asset meets write-off
criteria, the Company does not reduce impairment allowance from the gross carrying
amount.

e Financial assets measured at FVTOCI: Since financial assets are already reflected at
fair value, impairment allowance is not further reduced from its value. Rather, ECL
amount is presented as ‘accumulated impairment amount' in the other
comprehensive income.
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i)

Financial liabilities
a) Initial recognition & measurement

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and
borrowings and payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs.

b) Subsequent measurement

The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described
below:

* Financial liability at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held
for trading and financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair value
through profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are incurred for the
purpose of repurchasing in the near term. Separated embedded derivatives are also
classified as held for trading unless they are designated as effective hedging
instruments.

Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognised in the statement of profit
and loss.

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or
loss are designated as such at the initial date of recognition, and only if the criteria in
Ind AS 109 'Financial instruments' are satisfied. For liabilities designated as FVTPL,
fair value gains / losses attributable to changes in own credit risk are recognised in
other comprehensive income. These gains / losses are not subsequently transferred
to statement of profit and loss. However, the Company may transfer the cumulative
gain or loss within equity. All other changes in fair value of such liability are
recognised in the statement of profit and loss. The Company has not designated any
financial liability as at fair value through profit or loss.

* Loans & borrowings

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the Effective Interest Rate (EIR) method. Gains
and losses are recognised in statement of profit and loss when the liabilities are
derecognised as well as through the EIR amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on
acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR
amortisation is included as finance costs in the statement of profit and loss.

¢) Derecognition

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or
cancelled or expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the
same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are
substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition
of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the
respective carrying amounts is recognised in the statement of profit and loss.
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3.7.

3.8.

iii)  Compound financial instruments

The liability component of a compound financial instrument is recognised initially at fair value
of a similar liability that does not have an equity component. The equity component is
recognised initially as the difference between the fair value of the compound financial
instrument as a whole and the fair value of the liability component. Any directly attributable
transaction costs are allocated to the liability and the equity components, if material, in
proportion to their initial carrying amounts.

Subsequent to the initial recognition, the liability component of a compound financial
instrument is measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method. The equity
component of a compound financial instrument is not re-measured subsequent to initial
recognition except on conversion or expiry.

iv)  Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the
balance sheet if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts
and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, to realise the assets and settle the liabilities
simultaneously.

V)  Re-classification

The Company determines classification of financial assets and liabilities on initial recognition,
After initial recognition, no re-classification is made for financial assets which are equity
instruments and financial liabilities. For financial assets which are debt instruments, a
reclassification is made only if there is a change in the business model for managing those
assets. Changes to the business model are expected to be infrequent. The management
determines change in the business model as a result of external or internal changes which
are significant to the Company's operations. A change in the business model occurs when
the Company either begins or ceases to perform an activity that is significant to its
operations. If the Company reclassifies financial assets, it applies the reclassification
prospectively from the reclassification date which is the first day of the immediately next
reporting period following the change in business model. The Company does not restate any
previously recognised gains, losses (including impairment gains or losses) or interest.

Equity share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs net of taxes directly attributable to the
issue of new equity shares are reduced from retained earnings, net of taxes.

Revenue recognition

With effect from 1t April 2018, the Company had adopted Ind AS 115 ‘Revenue from Contracts
with Customers' which introduces a new five-step approach to measuring and recognizing revenue
from contracts with customers. Under Ind AS 115, revenue is recognized at an amount that
reflects the consideration to which an entity expects to be entitled in exchange for transferring
goods or services to a customer. No adjustment was required to be made for the revenue
recognized prior to implementation of this standard.

Revenue is recognised upon transfer of control of promised goods or services to customers in an
amount that reflects the consideration which the Company expects to receive in exchange for
those goods or services. Revenue is measured based on the transaction price, which is the
consideration, adjusted for discount, if any. When there is uncertainty as measurement or ultimate
collectability, revenue recognition is postponed until such uncertainty is resolved.
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i) Revenue comprises of sale of rooms, banquets, food & beverages and allied services relating
to hotel operations which is recognised upon rendering of service. Sales and services are
recorded net of goods and services tax, sales tax and discounts. Revenues in excess of
invoicing are classified as contract assets (which we refer as unbilled revenue) while
invoicing in excess of revenues are classified as contract liabilities (which we refer to as
income received in advance). Initial non-refundable membership fee is recognised as income
over the period of validity of membership as the performance obligation is satisfied over the
tenure of membership. Annual membership fees are recognised as income on time
proportion basis. Membership fee is recorded net of taxes.

i) Contribution to customer loyalty programs calculated as per agreed percentages of qualifying
revenues are accounted on accrual basis and the same is reduced from the revenue.

i)  Dividend income on investments is accounted for in the year in which the right to receive is
established, which is generally when shareholders approve the dividend.

iv)  For all financial instruments measured at amortised cost, interest income is recorded using
the effective interest rate (EIR), which is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future
cash payments or receipts through the expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter
period, where appropriate, to the net carrying amount of the financial asset. Interest income is
included in other income in the statement of profit and loss.

v)  Lease income / rental income is recognised (net of goods and services tax) as per the terms
of the relevant agreement. (Also refer note 3.14)

vi)  Non-refundable deposit received from lessee under operating lease is recognised as income
over the tenure of the lease agreement on straight line basis.

vii) Key money received (goods and service tax) in conjunction with entering into hotel
management agreements is deferred and amortised over the term of the hotel management
agreement. Un-amortised portion of key money is considered as non-financial liability.

Contract modifications are accounted for when additions, deletions or changes are approved either
to the contract scope or contract price. The accounting for modifications of contracts involves
assessing whether the services added to an existing contract are distinct and whether the pricing
is at the standalone selling price. Services added that are not distinct are accounted for on a
cumulative catch up basis, while those that are distinct are accounted for prospectively, either as a
separate contract, if the additional services are priced at the standalone selling price, or as a
termination of the existing contract and creation of a new contract if not priced at the standalone
selling price.

Deferred contract costs are incremental costs of obtaining a contract which are recognized as
assets and amortized over the term of the contract.

The Company's contracts with customers mainly include promises to transfer products and
services to a customer. The Company assesses the products / services promised in a contract and
identifies distinct performance obligations in the contract, if any. ldentification of distinct
performance obligation involves judgement to determine the deliverables and the ability of the
customer to benefit independently from such deliverables.

The Company uses judgement to determine an appropriate standalone selling price for a
performance obligation. The Company allocates the transaction price to each performance
obligation on the basis of the relative standalone selling price of each distinct product or service
promised in the contract. Where standalone selling price is not observable, the Company uses the
expected cost plus margin approach to allocate the transaction price to each distinct performance
obligation.
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3.9.

3.10.

3.11.

Government grants

Government grants are recognized in the period to which they relate when there is reasonable
assurance that the grant will be received and that the Company will comply with the attached
conditions. Government grants are recognized in the statement of profit and loss on systematic
basis over a period in which the Company recognizes as expenses the related costs for which the
grants are intended to compensate.

Foreign currency transactions

Transactions denominated in foreign currencies are recorded at the exchange rates prevailing on
the date of the transaction. As at the Balance Sheet date, foreign currency monetary items are
translated at closing exchange rate. Exchange difference arising on settlement or translation of
foreign currency monetary items are recognised as income or expense in the year in which they
arise.

Foreign currency non-monetary items which are carried at historical cost are reported using the
exchange rate at the date of transactions. Foreign currency non-monetary items which are
measured at fair value are reported using the exchange rate at the date when the fair value is
determined. Exchange difference arising on fair valuation of non-monetary items is recognised in
line with the gain or loss of item that give rise to such exchange difference (i.e. translation
differences on items whose gain or loss is recognised in statement of profit and loss or other
comprehensive income is also recognised in statement of profit or loss or other comprehensive
income respectively).

Employee benefits
i)  Short term employee benefit

All employee benefits falling due wholly within twelve months after the end of the reporting
period are classified as short term employee benefits and they are recognised as an expense
at the undiscounted amount in the statement of profit and loss in the period in which the
employee renders the related service.

ii) Post-employment benefits
a. Defined contribution plan

The defined contribution plan is post-employment benefit plan under which the Company
contributes fixed contribution to a government administered fund and will have no legal or
constructive obligation to pay further contribution. The Company's defined contribution
plan comprises of Provident Fund, Labour Welfare Fund and Employee State Insurance
Scheme. The Company's contribution to defined contribution plans are recognised in the
statement of profit and loss in the period in which the employee renders the related
services.

b. Defined benefit plan

The Company has defined benefit plans comprising of gratuity. Company's obligation
towards gratuity liability is funded and is managed by Life Insurance Corporation of India
(LIC). The present value of the defined benefit obligations is determined based on
actuarial valuation using the projected unit credit method. The rate used to discount
defined benefit obligation is determined by reference to market yields at the Balance
Sheet date on Indian Government Bonds for the estimated term of obligations.
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Re-measurements comprising of (a) actuarial gains and losses, (b) the effect of the asset
ceiling (excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability) and
(c) the return on plan assets (excluding amounts included in net interest on the net
defined benefit liability) are recognised immediately in the balance sheet with a
corresponding debit or credit to retained earnings through other comprehensive income
in the period in which they occur. Re-measurements are not reclassified to statement of
profit and loss in subsequent periods.

The return on plan assets is the Company’s expectation of average long-term rate of
return on the investment of the fund over the entire life of the related obligation. Plan
assets are measured at fair value as at the Balance Sheet date.

The interest cost on defined benefit obligation and expected return on plan assets is
recognised under finance cost.

Gains or losses on the curtailment or settlement of defined benefit plan are recognised
when the curtailment or settlement occurs.

iiiy  Other long-term benefits

The Company has other long-term benefits in the form of leave benefits. The present value of
the other long term employee benefits is determined based on actuarial valuation using the
projected unit credit method. The rate used to discount defined benefit obligation is
determined by reference to market yields at the Balance Sheet date on indian Government
Bonds for the estimated term of obligations.

Actuarial gains or losses arising on account of experience adjustment and the effect of
changes in actuarial assumptions are recognised immediately in the statement of profit and
loss as income or expense.

Gains or fosses on the curtailment or settiement of other long-term benefits are recognised
when the curtailment or settlement occurs.

3.12. Share-based payments

The holding company has formulated “Employees Stock Option Scheme 2007" share-based
payment scheme. Under said scheme, holding company has awarded its shares to the employees
of the Company. The award will be settled through issuance of shares of the holding company.
The holding company has the obligation to deliver the shares and there is no obligation to deliver
shares on the Company. Since the Company does not have an obligation to settle the award, the
award is treated as an equity-settied plan.

The cost of equity-settled transactions is determined by the fair value at the date when the grant is
made using an appropriate valuation model. The Company is recognising the expenses in respect
of employees to whom awards are granted and credit is given to other equity. The expenses is
recognized over the vesting period. At the end of each reporting date, the Company revises its
estimate of the numbers of options that are expected to vest to employees during the vesting
period. The impact of the revision to original estimates, if any, is recognised in the statement of
profit and loss with a corresponding adjustment to other equity.
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3.13. Borrowing costs

3.14.

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of a
qualifying asset are capitalized as part of the cost of the respective asset till such time the asset is
ready for its intended use or sale. A qualifying asset is an asset which necessarily takes a
substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale. All other borrowing costs are
expensed in the period in which they occur. Borrowing costs consist of interest expenses
calculated as per effective interest method, exchange difference arising from foreign currency
borrowings to the extent they are treated as an adjustment to the borrowing cost and other costs
that an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds.

Leases
A) Accounting policy effective from 1° April 2019

The Company had adopted Ind AS 116 'Leases' effective from 1st April 2019, as notified by

the Ministry of Corporate Affairs in the Companies (Indian Accounting Standard)

Amendment Rules, 2019. The adoption of this standard did not have any impact on the

profits for the year.

As a Lessee:

¢ At inception of a contract, the Company assesses whether a contract is, or contains, a
lease. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the
use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration.

» At commencement or on modification of a contract that contains a lease component, the
Company allocates the consideration in the contract to each lease and non-lease
component on the basis of their relative standalone prices.

o The Company has elected not to recognise right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for
leases of low-value assets and short-term leases. The Company recognises the lease
payments associated with these leases as an expense on a straight-line basis over the
lease term.

As a Lessor:

o Assets acquired on leases where a significant portion of risk and rewards of ownership
are retained by the lessor are classified as operating leases. Lease rental are charged to
statement of profit and loss on straight-line basis or another systematic basis provided
another systematic basis is more representative of the pattern in which benefits from the
use of underlying asset is diminished. Initial direct cost incurred by lessor in negotiating
and arranging an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset
and recognized over the lease terms on the same basis as lease fess income.

B) Accounting policy upto 315 March 2019

Lease arrangements where risks and rewards incidental to ownership of an asset
substantially vest with the lessor are classified as operating lease.

Lease expenses / License fees income received on assets obtained / given under operating
lease arrangements are recognised on a straight-ine basis as an expense /
in the statement of profit and loss over the lease term of the respective lease arrangement.
Straight line basis is not used when payments are structured so as to increase in line with
expected general inflation to compensate for the expected inflationary cost increases. Initial
direct cost incurred by lessor in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added to
the carrying amount of the leased asset and recognized over the lease terms on the same
basis as lease fess income.
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3.15. Taxes on income

3.16.

3.17.

Tax expenses for the year comprises of current tax, deferred tax charge or credit and adjustments
of taxes for earlier years. In respect of amounts adjusted outside profit or loss (i.e. in other
comprehensive income or equity), the corresponding tax effect, if any, is also adjusted outside
profit or loss.

Provision for current tax is made as per the provisions of Income Tax Act, 1961.

Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences between the tax bases
of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the reporting
date. Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences, and deferred tax
assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, carry forward tax losses and
allowances to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against which
those deductible temporary differences, carry forward tax losses and allowances can be utilised.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the
year when the asset is realized or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that
have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date. Deferred tax assets and
deferred tax liabilities are offset, if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxation authority.

Deferred tax assets are recognised only to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profit
will be available against which such deferred tax assets can be utilized. In situations where the
Company has unused tax losses and unused tax credits, deferred tax assets are recognised only if
it is probable that they can be utilized against future taxable profits. Deferred tax assets are
reviewed for the appropriateness of their respective carrying amounts at each Balance Sheet date.

At each reporting date, the Company re-assesses unrecognised deferred tax assets. It recognises
previously unrecognised deferred tax assets to the extent that it has become probable that future
taxable profit allow deferred tax assets to be recovered.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand, bank balances, deposits with banks (other than
on lien) and all short term and highly liquid investments that are readily convertible into known
amounts of cash and are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

For the purpose of cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalent as calculated above also
includes outstanding bank overdrafts as they are considered an integral part of the Company's
cash management.

Cash flow statement

Cash Flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby net profit before tax is adjusted for
the effects of transactions of non-cash nature, any deferrals or accruals of past or future operating
cash receipts or payments and item of income or expenses associated with investing or financing
cash flows. The cash flows from operating, investing and financing activities of the Company are
segregated.
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3.18.

3.19.

3.20.

3.21.

Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets

A provision is recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a
result of past event and it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the
obligation, in respect of which a reliable estimate can be made. If the effect of time value of money
is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that reflects, when appropriate,
the risk specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the
passage of time is recognised as a finance cost. These are reviewed at each balance sheet date
and adjusted to reflect the current best estimates.

A disclosure for a contingent liability is made when there is a possible obligation or a present
obligation that may, but probably will not require an outflow of resources. When there is a possible
obligation or a present obligation in respect of which likelihood of outflow of resources is remote,
no provision or disclosure is made.

The Company does not recognize a contingent asset but discloses its existence in the financial
statements if the inflow of economic benefits is probable. However, when the realisation of income
is virtually certain, then the related asset is no longer a contingent asset, but it is recognised as an
asset.

Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit or loss (after tax) for the year
attributable to equity shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding
during the year. The weighted average numbers of shares also includes fixed number of equity
shares that are issuable on conversion of compulsorily convertible instruments and it is included
from the date consideration is receivable (generally the date of their issue) of such instruments.

Diluted earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit or loss (after tax) for the year
attributable to equity shareholders and the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding
during the year are adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares.

Exceptional item

Certain occasions, the size, type or incidence of an item of income or expense, pertaining to the
ordinary activities of the Company is such that its disclosure improves the understanding of the
performance of the Company, such income or expense is classified as an exceptional item and
accordingly, disclosed in the notes accompanying to the financial statements.

Replacement reserve fund

In accordance with hotel operating agreement, replacement reserve fund has been created by
debiting “Retained Earnings” based on the (a) agreed percentage of revenues and (b) interest
earned from earmarked funds.

New standard issued / modified but not effective as at reporting date

Ministry of Corporate Affairs has not issued any new standard or amendments to the existing
standards which would have been effective from 15t April 2020.
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5

5.1

52
53

5.4

Property, plant and equipment (Rs. In lakhs)
Partlculars Land/ FSI/ Development Bulldings Plant & Furnlture & Computers | High End Operating| Vehicles Total
Rights (Refer note 6.1 and |  (Refer note 5.1) Machinery Fixtures Supplles
6.2)
Gross block :
As at 1st Aprll 2018 32,110.50 51,3685.44 15,883.13 14,049.79 289.45 439.72 258.46 1,14,306.49
Addition - - 16228 87.67 177.69 . 61.02 488.66
Adjusimenis/Deletions - - 144.08 - 5,05 - . 149.13
As at 318t March 2019 32,110.50 51,365.44 15,501.33 14,137.46 462.08 439.72 319.48 1,14,736.02
Addition - - 245.78 190.31 121.85 - - 557.94
Adjustments/Doletions - - 14,51 13.56 13.80 - 29.97 71.84
Ag at 318t March 2020 32,110.50 £1,368,44 16,132.60 14,314.21 570.14 438.72 289.51 1,15,222.12
‘Accumulated depreclation:
'Aa at 1st April 2018 5,193.63 3,665.70 6,170.70 205.38 417.39 87.58 15,720.38
Depraciation charge for the year B 1,788 57 1.212.19 2,196.85 79.40 14.32 38.57 5,329.90
Deductions / Adjuslments - - 69.43 - 441 - - 73.84
As at 31st March 2019 - 6,982.20 4,808.48 8,367.56 280.37 431.71 106.15 20,976.44
Depreciation charge for the year - 1,783.39 1,222.30 2,148.60 82,14 8.01 40,54 5,204.98
Daeductions { Adjustments . - 454 10.38 13.11 - 27,68 55.71
(As at 31st March 2020 - 8,775.69 6,026.22 10,508.77 349.40 439.72 115.01 28,215.71
Not book value
As at 318t March 2019 32,110.50 44,383.24 11,092.87 5,769.91 161,72 8.01 213.33 93,759.58
As at 31st March 2020 32,110.50 42,569.85 10,106.38 3,808.44 220.74 . 170.60 89,006.41
The Company had § land d fights from lls holding cempany, The Phoentx Mills Limilad [PML], As per the tarms of the agreement dated 30(h March 2007, after complation of hotel

Sruclure bul not before explry of thres years from the date of execulion of this agre
{otal Intatest in tha land &8s Ihe FSI ullized by axeculing a deed of

ce, Panding y

Y \
under the head ‘Land/FSI/Devolopment Rights', Also refer note 19.1.1 for dalaiis of assals pledged wilh lenders,
Land/FS!/Development Rights include Rs 92.00 lakhs paid for right of way lo slum dewellers.

For disclosure related to asset glven on operaling lease refer note 41(a),
f of dep and p with st of profit and loss;

{Re. In lakhs)
Partlculars 2019-20 201819
Dapreciation expenses as abave an properly, plani & oquipment 5,284 9B 6,329.90
|Amartization expenses (Refer note 7} 17.24 17.08
Total 5,312.22 5,346.96
Less: Reversal of depraclation due to return of furniture & fixtures of {0.08)
k8. 1.48 lakhs (Provious year: Rs. Nil) .
Amount dabited to statement of profit and loss 531214 5.346.96

5.5 Refer note 19.1 for assets glven as securlty for avalling loan from lenders

emenl, PML shall convey and lransfer undivided right,
e and other transfar formaklies, the

1ile and kriterest In the land which bears the same proportion 16 tha
Company had capitalised cosl Incurrad on FS| and Development right
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{Rs. in lakhs)
[} ‘Movement In capltal work in progress

Capltal Work In Progress (CWIP) as on 1st Aprll 2018 -
Add: Additions during the year -
Plant & Machinery (Electrical Equipments}) 45.28
Closing capltal work In progress as on 31st March 2019 45.28
Less: Capitalised during the year
Plant & Machinery (Electrical Equipments) (45.28)
Closing capltal work In progress as on 31st March 2020 -

Computer software

7 Other Intanglble Assets {acqulred)

Gross block :
As at 18! April 2018 202.82
Addition 7.66
Adjustments/Deletions s
As at 31st March 2018 210.48
Addition 5
Adjustmants/Delstions E
As at 31st March 2020 210.48
Accumulated amortisation:
As at 1st April 2018 165.01
Depreciation charge for the year 17.06
Deductions / Adjustments L
As at 31st March 2019 182.07
Depraciation charge for the year 17.24
Deductions / Adjusiments -
As at 31st March 2020 199.31
Net book value
As at 31st March 2019 28.41
As at 31st March 2020 11.17

7.1 Balance useful life of Intangible assats:
| Useful Life | As at 31sl March 2020 | As at 31st March 2019 |
Soflware | Ranging from 0-4 Years | Ranging from 0-5 Years |

(Rs. in lakhs

8 Non-current financial assets - Investments As at As at
31st March 2020 31st March 2019
Long-term non-trado investment
(Unquoted investimenl)
Investment in Equity Instruments
2,500 (Previous year. 2500) Equily shares of Rs. 10 each in The Sarsswal Co- 0.25 025

Operative Bank Limiled

Investment in Preference Shares
50,000 (Previous year: 50,000) 10.50% Perpetual Non-cumulative Preference shares 5.00 5.00

of Rs. 10 each in The Saraswat Co-Operalive Bank Limited

investment In goverment securltles

National Saving Certificate - NSC (Refer note 8.1) 0.80 070

[under lien with State Excise Authorities]

Total 6.08 5.95
6.05 595

Aggregate cost of unquoted investments
Agarsegate amount of impairment in valus of investments -

8.1 Investment in National Savings Certificates of Rs. 0,60 Lakhs (Previous year: 0.70 Lakhs) is held in the name of the Company’s Employes and Ex-Director
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(Rs. in lakhs)
As at As at

9 Nen-current financial assets - Other assets
31st March 2020 31st March 2018
Bank deposil maturing after one year (under lien) (Refer note 91) 161166 443.54
Security deposit 9391 1566
Export benefils receivable (Refer note 9.2 & 9.3) 1,048.96 55180
Total 275453 1,011.00
=

91 Liengiven for EPCG license, liquor license and bank guarantes given o pollution contro! board & olectricity distribution company. Furlher, it also includes fixed
deposits given to bank for debt service reserve account against financlal facility avaited from banks.

92 The Company is in process of filing application for export benefits of Rs. 355,38 lakhs pertaining to FY 2018-20.
93 As the Company is rightfully entitled to export benefits, the same has been re-classified from other current assels to non-current financial asset in the current

year as per ITFG -15 clarffication issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.
(Rs. in lakhs)
As at As at

10 [Deferred tax assets (net)
31st March 2020 31st March 2019

Deferred tax assets:

Unabsorbed tex losses and Carry forward depreciation 1,661.47 2,772.45
Uriamortized key money income 1,397.40 2,035.22
ltems covered under section 438 of Income Tax Act 677.57 802.00
Provision for doubtful debts 30.32 3314
Others 1421 23.74
Deferred tax liabillty:

Dapreciation / Amortization 3,770.97 5,284.97
Nel deferred tax assels . 381.58

101 As per Ind AS 12 - Income Taxes, deferred tax asset should be recognised for the carry forward of unused tax losses and unused tax credits to the extent that
it is probable that fulure taxable profit will be available against which the unused tax losses and unused tax credits can be ulilised. In the current year Company
has recognised deferred tax assets lo the exlent of deferred tax liability considering uncertainty related 1o taxable profit due to Covid-18 in near future against

which unused tax losses can be utilised, In the previous year, the Company had recognised deferred tax assels 1o the exlent it was probable that sufficient
future taxable profit will be available against which such deferrad tax assets can be realised.

10.2 The Company is having (i) unused depraciation losses as on 31st March 2020 is Rs. 27,160.30 lakhs (Previous year: Rs. 27,446.44 lakhs) and these losses
do not have any expiry date (i) unused tax businass losses as on 31st March 2020 is Rs. 16,018.82 lakhs {Pravious year: Rs. 17,580.20 lakhs) and its expiry
date varies fram 1 Lo 4 years (Previous year 2 1o 5 years) respectively.

10.3  Also refer note 44 for other disclosures related to tax raconciliation

(Rs. In lakhs)
11 [Non-current assets - Other assets As at As at
31st March 2020 31st March 2018

Unsecured, considered good
Caplial advances 108.12 59 49
Advante for property tax (Paid under protest) (Refer note 27 1(b)) 3,441 51 295315
Others

Advance taxes (Tax deducted at source) 1,453.01 1,420.49

Amount paid under protest (Refer note 37 (a), {c) & (d)) 12.00 37.16

Prepaid Expenses 34.19 82.80
Unsecured, consldered doubtful
Capital advances 350.00 350.00
Less : Provision for doublful advances (350.00} (350.00)
Total 4,748,823 4!553.03

Rs. in lakhs
12  [Current assets - Inventories As at As at

(At lower of cost or net realizable valug) 31st March 2020 31st March 2019

Food and Beverages 434.57 377.46
Stores end Operating Supplies 30.20 30.20
Less: Provision for obselence 30.20 30.20
Total 434.57 377.48

Also Refer note 19.1 for details of inventory pledged with lenders
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(Rs. in lakhs)

Current financlal assets -Trade receivables

As at
31st March 2020

As at
31st March 2019

(a) Trade Receivables considered good - Secured

parly)

(c) Trade Recsivables which have significant increase in Credit Risk
(d) Trade Receivables - credit impaired

Total

Net trade recelvables

(b) Trade Receivables considered good - Unsecured (Refer note 39 for amount receivable from relaled

Less: Allowance for doubtful trade recsivables and expected credit losses (Refer note 46(b))

1,681.81 1,801.17
1,581.81 1,801.17
(112.29) (94,84)
1,469.52 1,706.33

2o

The Company follows simplified approach & the trade receivables do not contain significant financing component and accordingly the Company does not
separalely track changes in credit risk of lrade receivables as the impairment amount represents "lifetime" expected credit loss. Accordingly, the disclosure as
required by Schedule lll, Division |l of the Companies Act, 2013 as regards (a) Trade Receivables which have significant increase in credit risk & {b) Trade
Receivables which are credit impaired is not required. However, as specified in accounting policy 3.6 (i)(d), in addition to coliective pool assessment, the
Company carried out individual assessmenl in respect of certain parties where the possibility of defaull in collection of trade receivable was high.

Particulars

As at
31st March 2020

31st March 2019

The amount of loss allowancs recognised for such trade receivables

The amount of irade recsivables for which the Company has assessed credit risk on an individual basis

556.16
81.39

153,19
63.23

{Rs. in lakhs)

Current financial assets - Cash and cash equivalent

As at
31st March 2020

As at
31st March 2019

Cash on hand 1901 7876
Balances with bank
- In current accounts 506.47 52499
525.48 603.75
{Rs. In lakhs)
Current assets - Other financlal assets As at As at
31st March 2020 31st March 2019
Unsecured, consldered good
Interest accrued on fixed deposits 13.78 -
Security deposits 20.53 1068
Unbilled revenue 174.58 382.02
Less: Expected credit losses on unbilled revenus (Refer note 46(b)) (8.16) (11.46}
166.42 370.56
Total 200.73 390.24
(Rs. in lakhs)
Current assets - Other assets As at As at

Other loans and advances
- Advance to suppliers
- Other advances
Prepaid expenses

Total

31st March 2019

39.85 28.52
097 864
22369 227.58
264.51 264.74
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Share capltal

(Rs. In lakhs
Authorized capltal As at As at
31st March 2020 31st March 2019
Equity share capital
1,200,000 Equily Shares (Previous year: 1,200,000) of Rs. 100 each 1,200.00 1,200.00
Total 1,200.00 1,200.00
(Rs. in lakhs)
|Issued, subscribed and paid-up capital As at As at
31st March 2020 31st March 2019
Equity share capital
1,200,000 Equity Shares (Previous year: 1,200,000) of Rs. 100 each 1,200.00 1,200.00
Total 1,200.00 1,200.00

Rights, preferences and restriclions of Equity Shares:

The Company has only one class of shares referred to as equity shares having a par value of Rs.100/-. Each holder of equity shares is enlitled to one vote per
share. In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive any of the remaining assets of the Company, after
distribution of ail preferential amounts. However, there are no preferential amounts inter se equity shareholders. The distribution will be in proportion to the
number of equity shares held by the shareholders (After dus adjustment in case shares are not fully paid up.) Also Refer note 18.1

The reconcilialion of the number of equity shares outstanding and the amount of share capital is as follows :

(Rs. in lakhs)
Particulars As at 31st March 2020 As at 31st March 2018
Number of Shares Amount Number of Shares Amount
Number of shares at the beginning 12,00,000 1,200.00 12,00,000 1,200.00
Add: Shares issued during the year - - = -
Less: Bought back - - - -
Number of shares at the end 12,00,000 1,200 12,00,000.00 1,200.00

Details of shareholders holding more than § % shares in the Company:

As at 31st March 2019

Particulars As at 31st March 2020
% of holding No of Shares % of holding No of Shares
The Phoenix Mills Limiled (PML) 100 12,00,000 100 12,00,000

* Of the above 12,00,000 shares, 7 shares are jointly held by PML with other parties
In respect to the terms & conditions of instruments convertible into equity shares, refer Note 18.1

Other Equity
Terms of Securities convertible Into Equity Shares

Optionally Convertible "Serles J" Unsecured Debentures (OCD)

In the previous year, pursuant to consent provided by the holders of zero coupon non-convertible fully redeemable non-transferable debentures series F (in
aggregate holding NCD of Rs. 4,600 lakhs) & approved by the Board of Directors vide resolution dated 30th March 2019, the Non-Convertible debentures
aggregaling to Rs. 4.600 lakhs was converted into 0,0001% Optionally Converlible Debentures Series - J (OCD-series J) aggregating to Rs, 4,600 lakhs in the
previous year, As a result of this, the Company had issued 4,600,000 Optionally Convertible "Series J* Unsecured Debentures (OCD) of Rs 100 each to body
corporate [including the holding company, Phoenix Mills Limited] at face valus, In case of conversion, 1 OCD of Rs 100 each will be converted inlo such
number of Equity shares of Rs 100 each at a premium of Rs 732 per share. Further at the option of the Company, OCD may be redeemed within 10 years
from the date of allotment in one or more tranches at a premium not exceeding Rs 10 per OCD. The OCDs carries coupon rate @0.0001% p.a. until the dale
of redemption or conversion in to equity shares and the same is payable at the option of the Company.

OCD are convertible into fixed number of equity shares at fixed price and at the option of the Company and hence meet the definition of equily based on the
management intention / judgement that it would exercise the option of conversion. Further refer note 2 4(v).

Optlonally Fully Convertible "Serles I" Unsecured Debentures (OFCD)

The Company had issued 21,980,912 (Previous year: 21,980,912) Optionally Fully Convertible “Series | Unsecured Debentures (OFCD) of Rs 100 each to
body corporate [including the holding company, Phoenix Mills Limited] a face value. The Company has an option to convert OFCD into Equily shares of the
Company al any time after 30th March 2017 _ In case of conversion, 1 OFCD of Rs 100 each will be converted inlo such number of Equily shares of Rs 100
each at a premium of Rs 575 per share. Further at the oplion of lhe Company, OFCD may be redeemed within 10 years from the date of allolmenl in one or
more tranches at a premium nol exceeding Rs 10 per OFCD. The OFCDs carries coupon rate @4% which will accrue only at lhe time of redemption & il will
be payable al ihe lime of redemption of Lhe inslrument by the Company.

OFCD are convertible into fixed number of equity shares at fixed price and at the option of the Company and hence meet the definition of equity based on lhe
management intention / judgement that it would exercise the option of conversion. Furlher refer nole 2.4(v).

Non Cumulative Unsecured Compulsory Convertible Debentures “Serles H"

The Company had issued 842,969 Non Cumulative Unsecured Compulsory Convertible Debentures “Series H” of face value of Rs. 100 each at a premium of
Rs. 1,240.50 per debenlure, As per debenture certificale, the investors have the option to convert each debenture into one equity share of the Company of Rs.
100 at any time on or afler 14th July 2016. The Company shall not declare any dividend or other distribution to be paid lo he holder/s of the equity shares of
the Company. However, in the event of such declaration, lhe Company will be obliged to pay coupon rale at the same rate as the dividend declared. In the
event investors do not converl the debenlures prior to 13th July 2018, each debenture will compulsorily be converled into one equity share of the Company on

14th July 2018,

In the financial year 17-18, the debenture holders had agreed to extend the date of conversion of CCD's for further period of 10 years from the date of
renewal. Upon conversion, each CCD will be converled into one equily share with face value of Rs. 100 each. As per ihe revised terms, the Company shall nol
declare any dividend or other distribution to be paid to the holder/s of the equity shares of lhe Company. However, in the event of such declaration, the
Company will be obliged to pay coupon rate at the sams rate as the dividend declared 1o debenture holders.

Non Cumulative Unsecured Compulsory Convertible Debentures “Serles D"

The Company had issued 407,703 Non Cumulative Unsecured Compulseory Convertible Debentures *Series D" of face value of Rs. 100 each al a premium of
Rs. £64.26 per debenture. As per debenture cerlificate, the investors have the option to convert each debenture into one equily share of the Company of Rs,
100 at any time on or afler 1st April, 2016. The debenture shall carry zero coupon lill 31st March, 2016 and for the period of non conversion after 31st March,
2016 the instrument may be entilled to coupon rate of not more than 2% p.a, as may be decided by the Company. The Company shall not declare any
dividend or other distribution to be paid to the holder/s of the equity shares of the Company. Howaver, in the event of such declaration, the Company will be
obliged to pay coupon rale at the same rate as the dividend declared. At lhe end of the 71h year from the date of he issue, each debenture will compulsorily be
converted into one equily share of Rs. 100 each of the Company.

In the financial year 17-18, the debenture holders had agreed to extend the date of conversion of CCD's for further period of 10 years from the date of
renewal. Upon conversion, each CCD will be converted into one equity share with face value of Rs, 100 each, As per the revised terms, the Company shall not
declare any dividend or olher distribution to be paid lo the holder/s of the equity shares of lhe Company. However, in lhe event of such declaration, the
Company will be obliged to pay coupon rate at the same rate as the dividend declared to debenture holders
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Non Cumulative Unsecured Compulsory Convertlble Debentures “Series A”

The Company had issusd 635,294 Non Cumulative Unsecured Compulsory Convertible Debantures *Series A" of face valus of Rs. 100 each al & pramium of
Rs. 664.26 per debenture. As per debenture certificate, the investors have lhe optian lo convert each dabenture into ane equity share of the Company of Rs.
100 at any time on or after 1st April 2016. The debenlure shall carry zero coupon till 31st Mareh, 2016 and for the period of non conversion after 31st March,
20186, not more than 2% p.a., as may be decided by the Company. The Company shall not daclare any dividend or other distribulion to be paid to the holder/s
of the equily shares of the Company. Howaver, in the event of such declaration, lhe Company will be obliged o pay gaupon rate al the same rate as the
dividend declared. At the end of the 10th year from the date of the issue, each debenture will compulsorily be converted inlo one equity share of Rs. 100 of the
Company.

In the financial year 17-18, the debenture holders had agreed to extend the date of conversion of CCD's for further period of 10 years from the date of
renawal. Upon conversion, each CCD will be converted into one equity share with face value of Rs. 100 each. As per the revised terms, the Company shall not
declare eny dividend or other distribution to be paid to the holder/s of the equity shares of the Company. However, in the event of such declaration, the
Company will be obliged to pay coupon rate at the same rate as the dividend declared to debenture holders,

Non Cumulatlve Unsecured Compulsory Convertible Debentures “Series C”

The Company had eonverted unsecurad loan from Halding Company Into 847,365 Non Cumulative Unsecured Compulsory Convertible Debentures "Series G”
of fave value of Rs, 100 each &t a premium of Rs. 640 86 per deberlurs during the financial year 2012-13. As per debenture certificale, the investors have lhe
option lo canvert each debenture Into one equily share of the Company of Rs. 100 at any lime on or afler 1st April, 2015. The debenture shall carry zero
coupon |ill 31st March 2015, if PML does nol exercise the option lo convert CCDs into equity shares, the instrument may be entitled to a coupon rate of not
more than 2% p.a. as may be decided by the company for the period of non conversion afiar 31st March, 2015, The Company shall not declare any dividend
ar other distribution to the holderfs of the equity shares of the Company. However, in the avanl of such declaration, the Company will be obliged to pay coupon
rate at the same rale as he dividend declared, On 1st April, 2017, each debenture will compulsarily be convarted into one equity share.

In the financial year 17-18, the debenture holders had agreed to extend the date of conversion of CCD's for further period of 10 years from the date of
renewal. Upon caiversion, each CCD will be converted into one equity share with face valus of Rs, 100 each. As per the revised terms, the Company shall not
declare any dividend or other distribution to be paid to lhe holder/s of the equity shares of the Company. However, in the event of such declaralion, the
Company will be obliged to pay coupon rats al the same rate as the dividend declared to debenture holders.

Non Gumulative Unsecured Compulsory Convertible Debentures “Serles B”

The Company had issued 769,440 in various tranches, Non Cumulative Unsecured Compulsory Convertible Debentures “Series B" of face value of Rs, 100
each at a premium of Rs. 1,721.66 per debenture. As per debeniure cerlificate, the Investors have the option 1o convert each debenture into one aguity share
of the Company of Rs. 100 each at any time on or after 1st April, 2015, The debenturg shall carry zero coupon till 31st March, 2015 and for the period of non
conversion after 31st March, 2015 the instrument may be enlitled to coupon rate of not more than 2% p.a., as may be decided by the Company. The Company
shall not declare any dividend or other distribution ta the holder/s of the equity shares of the Company. However, in the event of such declaration, the
Company will be obliged lo pay coupan rate at the same rate as the dividend declared. On 1st April, 2017 each debenture will compulsorily be converted into
one equity share of Rs. 100 of the Company.

In the financial year 17-18, the debenture holders had agreed to extend the date of conversion of CCD's for further period of 10 years from the date of
renewal. Upon conversion, each CCD will be converted into one equity share with face value of Rs. 100 each. As per the revised terms, the Company shall not
declare any dividend or other distribution to be paid to the holder/s of the equity shares of the Company. However, in the event of such declaralion, the
Company will be obliged to pay coupon rate at the same rate as the dividend declared to debenture holders.

Non Cumulative Unsecured Compulsory Convertible Debentures “Series G”

The Company had issued 616,147 Non Cumulative Unsecured Compulsory Convertible Debentures "Series G" of face valus of Rs. 100 each at a premium of
Rs. 1,312 per debenlure, As per debenture cerlificate, the investors have the option to convert each debenture into one equity shara of lhe Company of Rs.
100 al any lime on or after 1L April 2015. The Company shall not declare ary dividend or other distritsution to be paid to the holder!s of the equily shares of lhe
Company, Howaver, In the evenl of such declaration, the Company will be obliged to pay coupon rate at the same rate as the dividend declared. In he event
Invesiors does not convert the debsniures prior to 31st March 2017, aach debenture will compulsorily be converted into one equity share of the Company on
1st April 2017

In the financial year 17-18, the debenture holders had agreed to extend the date of conversion of CCD's for further period of 10 years from the date of
renewal. Upon conversion, each CCD will be converted into one equity share with face value of Rs. 100 each. As per the revised terms, the Company shall not
declare any dividend or other distribution to be paid to lhe holder/s of the equity shares of the Company. However, in the event of such daclaration, the
Company will be obliged to pay coupon rate at the same rate as the dividend declared to debanture holders.

Nature & Purpose of Reserves & Surplus

Retained Earnings:
It represents the accumulated losses of the Company.

Securities Premium :
It represents the amount received in excess of par value of securitios. The same can be utilized as per provisions of section 52 of the Companies Act, 2013,

Replacement Reserve Fund :
As per the aperating agreement with Hotel operator, the Company is required to create a replacament reserve fund based on percantage of monthly revenues.

The said fund Is required to be earmarked and kept separalaly which can be utilised only for routine capital expenditure in respect of the hotel properly as per
the operating plan or as proposed by the hotel operator. Furiher all interest earned fram the said fund alse has to be added lo the sald fund.

Acoordingly the company has created a reserve of Rs. 1,117.60 lakhs (Previous year Rs. 1.062.13 lakhs) by debiting the balance in retained earnings and
ulilised reserve of Rs. 354.03 lakhs (Previous year Rs. 499.05 lakhs) by crediting balance in retained earnings.

Other Comprehenslve Income:
It represents the balance in equity for items to be accounted in Other Comprehensive Income. Other Comprehensive Income is classified into i) ltems that will

not be reclassified to statement of profit and loss & ii) llems that will be reclassified to slatement of profit and loss

Share option outstanding :
It represents fair value of stock option granted to employess of the Company under "Employee Stock Option Scheme 2007" by the holding company. Under

the scheme, employees of the Company antitles the shares of the holding campany.

Also refer note (b) under statement of change in equity
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Pallazzlo Hotels & Lelsure Limited
Notes to flnanclal statements for the year ended 31st March 2020

Non-current financial liabllities - Borrowings

Term Loans

- from banks (Refer note 19.1, 19,2 & 19.3)

- from NBFC's (Refer note 19.1, 19.2 & 19,3)
- Inleresl accrued and not due on Term Loan
Total Non-current Financial borrowings

Amount disclosed under the head "Other Current Financial Liabilities" (Refer note 25)

Less: Currenl maturilies of Term Loan
Less: Interest accrued and not due on Term Loan

Total

(Rs. in lakhs)
As at As at

31st March 2020 31st March 2019
42,443.08 34,444.66
= 13,387.50
321.55 128.02
42,764.63 47.960.18
88,98 19.73
321.55 128.02
410,53 147.75
42,354.10 47,812.43

The Company has laken secured loan from Axis Bank Limited and Saraswat Co-op Bank Lid (referred as "Consortium of Lenders"). The secured loan taken
from Yes Bank Limited and Aditya Birla Finance Ltd (NBFC) has been repaid during the year. The loans together with interest thereon are secured by the
security stipulaled herein below.

First pari-passu by way of registered mortgage, on all the immovable fixed assets land, proporlionate FSI rights & building/structure(s) thereupon), both present
& future of the projecL Currently, morigage shall be crealed on the entire land area of ~17853 sqmtrs, however, once, the conveyance is executed, 1/3rd of
the land area of PML shall be excluded from the charge and balance 2/3rd portion of undivided interest in land will continue lo be under mortgage. Also refer
note 5.1

First pari-passu charge/exclusive charge on all the movable fixed assels, current assets and receivables (bolh present & future), including escrow of lhe same
of the Project Also refer nole 5.5

Currently the Company is 100% subsidiary of PML, Avinash Bhosale Infrastructure Pvi Ltd (ABIPL) does not hold any equity interest in the Company. Till the
lime ABIPL does nol hold equily interest in the Company, PML will pledge 30% shareholding in the Company

After conversion of CCD's, 15% shareholding of PML & 15% shareholding of ABIPL in lhe Company should be pledged

Secured against hypolhecation of the vehicles
The Company had taken lerm loan for vehicles from various lenders. Term loan is fully repaid during FY 2019-2020 . The maturity profile of the loan amount is
as follows:

{Rs. in lakhs)
As at As at
31st March 2020 31st March 2019
2019-2020 - 18.73
Total - 19.73

Terms of repayment and maturity profile of the term loan:

Term loan from lenders (In respect of loan taken from lenders as mentloned in note 19.1)
The term loan is repayable in 4B unequal structured instalments beginning from June 2019 and last payment date is 31sl March 2031. Due to pre-payment,
nexl repayment of lerm loan as per toan agreement would be due from March 2021 (Previous year : December 2024) and last paymenl date is 31sl March
2031. The malurily profile of the loan amounl given below is modified accordingly:
(Rs. in lakhs)
As at
31st March 2019

As at
31st March 2020

Financial Year

2020-2021 8898 -
2021-2022 480 00 -
2022-2023 600 00 -
2023-2024 720,00 -
2024-2025 1.146 25 2,187 43
2025-2026 4,393.19 5,625.00
2026-2027 495569 5,625.00
2027-2028 6744 45 6,875.00
2028-2029 7.870.71 8,125,00
2029-2030 8687.09 9,375.00
2030-2031 6656 72 10,000.00

Total 42,443.08 47.812.43

In the previous year. pursuant to consent provided by the holders of zero coupon non-convertible fully redeemable non-lransferable debenlures series F (in
aggregate holding NCD of Rs. 4 600 lakhs) & approved by the Board of Directors vide resolution dated 30th March 2019, lhe Non-Converlible debentures
aggregating to Rs. 4,600 lakhs was converted into 0,0001% Optionally Convertible Debentures Series - J (OCD-series J) aggregating lo Rs 4,600 lakhs and
as a resull of this all the securilies allached to the said Non-Convertible Debentures was released. Consequent to the said change in lerms, the provision for
premium on redemption of lhe said non-convertible debenlures made in the earlier years was wrillen-back in the previous year since il was no longer payable
and was disclosed as an exceptional item in the slatement of profit & loss. Further prowvision for premium on redemplion of non-convertible debentures
aggregating lo Rs. 812 84 lakhs debited to finance cost and fair value adjustments aggregating lo Rs, 164 46 lakhs made lo revenue from operalions and
finance cost for the period April 2018 to December 2018 was reversed in the previous year Refer note 18 1(a}

{Rs. In lakhs)

Non-current financlal llabilities - Other liabilities

As at
JI1st March 2020

As at
31st March 2019

Securily deposil 36.50 16.50
Total 36.50 16.50
(Rs. in lakhs}

Non-current liabilities - provisions

As at
31st March 2020

As at
31st March 2019

Proviston for gratuity (Refer note 40)

Total

154 02

139.05

154.02

139.05
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31st March 2020

Unsecured
Loan repayable on demand

31st March 2018

{Rs. in lakhs
Non-current liabilities - Other non current liabilities As at As at
31st March 2020 st March 2019
Income received in advance 338.28 363.31
Total 338.28 363.31
__[Rs. In Jakhs)
Current financial liabilities - BorrowIngs As at As at

Principal amount paid to beyond due date

Amounl of interest paid under seclion 16

Amount of interesl due and remaining unpaid

Amount of inleres| accrued and rematning unpaid

The amount of furlher interesl due and payable even in the succeeding year, until such date when the
inlerest dues as above are actually paid to Lhe small enterprise, for lhe purpose of disallowance as a
deductible expenditure under section 23 of lhe above Act.

- from Related Parly (Holding Company) (Refer note 39) 1,861.00 1,861.00
Total 1,861.00 1,861,00
—q
(Rs. In lakhs)
Current financlal liabilities - Trade payables As at As at
31st March 2020 31st March 2019
- lolal oulslanding dues of micro enlerprises and small enlerprises (Refer note 24.1) 53.84 27,74
- lotal outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 2,037.32 2,636.36
Total 2,091.16 2,664.10
Disclosure under seclion 22 of Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Acl, 2006 is as tabulaled below:
(Rs. In lakhs)
Particulars As at As at
31st March 2020 J1st March 2019
Principal amount remaining unpaid lo suppliers 2774

53.84

The information as required to be disclosed in pursuance of the above referred Act has been determined Lo the extenl such parties have been identified on the

basis of information given by the suppliers to the Company

(Rs, in lakhs)

Current financial liabllities - Other liabilities As at As at
31st March 2020 J1st March 2018
Currenl maturities of Term loan from banks (Refer note 19.1,19.2 & 19.3) 88.98 19.73
Inlerest accrued and nol due on Term loan 321.55 128,02
Provision for expenses {electricity, water, etc,) 839.75 504,81
Ofther liabilities
- Security deposits 708.29 688.76
- Creditors for capilal goods (Refer note 24,1 & 25 1) 748 28 74413
- Salary payable 2967 242,37
- Olhers (excess amount received from cuslomers etc ) 1.47 1.08
Total 2,737.99 2,328.90
=0

The Company accounts for the invoices received from vendors/conlraclors based on the work cerlified Creditors for capital goods include Rs 331 93 lakhs
(Prevtous year Rs. 33t 93 lakhs) being provision made lowards the value of work done by the Company's appointed sub-coniraclors which is pending lo be

cerlified

{Rs. in lakhs)

Current liabilities - Other current liabilities

As at
st March 2019

Income received in advance
Advances from cuslomers
Key money advance
Statutory dues

Total

16383 168,30
562.10 479.00
5,552 30 5,824 25
45053 52022
672876 £,991.77
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(Rs. in takhs)

Current llabllities - provisions As at As at
31st March 2020 31st March 2019
Provision for property tax (Refer Note 27.1(b)) 5,805.00 4,828.00
Pravision for contingency (Refer Note 27.1(c)) 120.27 11627
Provision for gratuity (Refer note 40) 2500 30.69
Provision for leave benefits (Refer note 40) 14968 250.50
Provision for performance bonus (Refer Note 27.1(a)) 201.77 167 85
Total 6,301.72 5,413.31
Disclosure in movement of provision as required by Ind AS 37 ‘Provisions, Contingent iabilities and Contingent Assets":
The Company has made provisions for performance bonus which are expected to be paid in the nexl year. Details of which are tabulated below:
(Rs. in lakhs)
|Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
31st March 2020 31st March 2019
Opeaning Balance 187.85 292.50
Add: Provision during the year 201.77 1565 40
Less: Paid 147 40 23280
Less: Writtan back 40.44 27.26
Closing Balance 201.77 187.85

The Company had received demand for property tax in the month of September 2014, for the year 2012-13, 2013-14 8 2014-15 aggregating to Rs, 2,512.48
lakhs which was further revised in lhe month of January 2015 to Rs. 2,005 90 lakhs. The Company had contested the demand and pending resolution of the
malter the Company had made payment under protest of Rs.800 lakhs, The management was confident ihat the maximum liability would not be in excess of
50% of the cumulative demand of Rs. 2.005.90 lakhs. Accordingly the Company based on its estimate had made cumulative provision of Rs. 920 lakhs for the

years 2012-13, 2013-14 and 2014-15.

Inthe FY 2015-16 to FY 2019-20 the Company recsived the demand for Rs. 977 lakhs for each year and the same has been contested by lhe Company. As a
malter of abundant caution, lhe Company has made additional provision of Rs. 977 lakhs for each year. The differential demand is disclosed as contingent
liabilily (Refer note 37). Timing of additional outflow, if any, would be determined upon completion of the litigation. Delails of provision made is tabulated below:

(Rs. in lakhs)

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
31st March 2020 31st March 2019
Opening Balance 4,828.00 3,851.00
Add: Provision during the year 977.00 977.00
Less: Paid / Utilized - -
Less: Written back - -
Closing Balance 5,805.00 4,828.00

Provisions for contingency are towards various cases in respect of which managemenl believes that there are present obligalions and the seltiements of such

obligations are expected lo result in outflow of resources, to the extent pravided for

(Rs. in lakhs)
Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
J1st March 2020 31st March 2019
Opening Balance 116.27 2627
Add: Provision during the year 4,00 90.00
Less: Paid / Utilized = S
Less: Wrillen back = =
Closing Balance 120.27 116.27
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Pallazzlo Hotels & Leisure Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31st March 2020

(Rs. In lakhs)
Revenue from operations For the year ended | For the year ended
31st March 2020 31st March 2019
Room rent income” 13,725.28 13,515.91
Food, beverages and banquet income 14,288.00 14,236.94
Other operating income
- License fees (Refer note 41(a)) 408.99 496.13
- Revenue from spa and health club 581.44 673.94
- Car rentals 491.75 483.85
- Laundry charges 125.39 106.14
- Export incentives 503.49 285.47
- Key money 271.95 271.95
- Service charge 88.19 74.74
- Equipment rental revenue 205.66 188.27
- Others 199.87 187.23
Total 30,890.01 30,420.57

* Net of contribution to customer loyalty program of Rs. 326.85 lakhs (Previous year: Rs. 323.70 lakhs)

Disclosures of Ind AS 115:

The Company's operations relates to hospitality services. The Company applies the guidance provided in Ind AS 115 'Revenue from contracts with

customer' for determining the timing of recognition of revenue. Refer note 3.8,

For details of revenue recognised from contracts with customers, Refer note 28 above.
Disaggregation of revenue
For disaggregation of revenue, Refer note 28 above.

Revenue recognized during the year from opening balance of income received in advance:

(Rs. in lakhs)

For the year ended

For the year ended

Particulars
31st March 2020 31st March 2019
Balance at the beginning of the year 531.62 497.85
168.30 126.54

Revenue recognised that was included in the deferred revenue at the beginning of the year

Reconciliation of revenue recognized with the contracted price is as follows:

(Rs. in lakhs)

For the year ended

For the year ended

Particulars
31st March 2020 31st March 2019

Contracted price 31,5699.49 31,043.63
Less: Reductions towards discount given to customers 382.63 299.37
Less: Reductions towards contribution to customer loyalty program 326.85 323.69
Revenue recoanised 30,890.01 30,420.57

(Rs. in lakhs)
Other Income For the year ended | For the year ended

31st March 2020

31st March 2019

Dividend income from non-current investments

- In respect of investments designated at amortised cost 0.53 0.57
Interest income from financial assets at amortised cost 99.16 31.88
Provision for leave encashment written back 38.80 -
Interest on income tax refund 104.35 50.18
Total 242.84 82.63
(Rs. In lakhs)
Food and beverages consumed For the year ended | For the year ended
31st March 2020 31st March 2019
Opening stock 377.48 418.35
Add: Purchases 3,56569.07 3,568.96
3,936,53 3,987.31
Less: Closing stock 434.57 377.46
3,501.96 3,609.85

Total
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(Rs. in lakhs)
Other operating cost For the year ended | For the year ended
31st March 2020 31st March 2019
Stores and operating supplies 1,379.50 1,429.79
Power and fuel 2,387.87 2,397.74
Repairs and maintenance
- to buildings 183.60 169.67
- to machinery 468.75 468.27
- to others 108.22 119.18
Contract labour (Housekeeping, Security etc.) 932.96 902.26
Management fees 1,804.60 1,5620.77
Car hire charges 171.83 150.16
Uniform expenses 61.21 80.05
Music and entertainment expenses 176.10 133.55
VAT Expenses 44.96 -
Others 189.61 252.37
Total 7,909.21 7,623.81
(Rs. In lakhs)

Personnel expenses

For the year ended
31st March 2020

For the year ended
31st March 2019

Salaries, wages, bonus etc. 3,953.37 3,681.25
Contribulion to provident and other funds (Refer note 40) 245.28 214,60
Gratuity and leave benefits (Refer note 40) 63.45 161.63
Staff welfare expenses 36.62 60.08
Employee stock option expenses (Refer note 39 & 42) 6.73 10.60
Total 4,304.45 4,128.16
(Rs. in lakhs)
Selling and marketing expenses For the year ended | For the year ended

31st March 2020

31st March 2019

Advertisement expenses 268.57 207.50
Marketing expenses 292,07 278.15
Travel agent commission 301.08 259.84
Business promotion expenses 221.35 42.75
Reservation fees 173.21 182.56
Total 1,256.28 970.80
(Rs. in lakhs)

Administrative and other expenses

For the year ended
31st March 2020

For the year ended
31st March 2019

Auditors' remuneration
Provision for property tax (Refer note 27.1(b))

Rent, rates and taxes

Legal and professional fees

Travelling and conveyance expenses

Printing and stationery

License and stamp duty

Insurance

Telephone /Internet and web mail charges

Bad debts (net of utilization of Rs. 32.30 lakhs (Previous year Rs. 4.83 lakhs)
Allowance for doubtful debts (including expected credit losses)
Loss on sale / discard of fixed assets (net)

Provision for contingency (Refer note 27.1(c))

Forex exchange loss (net)

Donation

Miscellaneous expenses

Total

22.00 20.60
977.00 977.00
140.40 99.09
607.61 382.87

47.68 81.50

67.02 61.93
165.06 152.10
126.29 96.17
208.49 236.69

- 7.47

46.45 68.91

3.62 77.39
4.00 90.00

62.19 50.20
100.00 -

16.45 26.57

2,594.26 2,428.49
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Auditors' remuneration (excluding GST)

(Rs. In lakhs)

Particulars For the year ended | For the year ended
31st March 2020 31st March 2019

Audit fees 22.00 20.60

Total 22.00 20.60

(Rs. in fakhs)

Flnance costs

For the year ended
31st March 2020

For the year ended
31st March 2019

Borrowing cost
Interest on term loans and other loans (in respect of financial liabilities measured at
amortised cost)

Other borrowing cost
Interest others

Other charges

Credit card commission
Bank charges

Total

4,350.83 4,890.77
12.70 8.74
17.10 12.55
4,380.63 4,912.06
279.73 243.53
8.38 3.76
288.11 247.29

4,668.74 5,159.35
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36 Capltal C and Other C:

(a) i d of remalning to be executed on capilal accounts (Net of advances) and nol provided for In the accounls are Rs. 15.51 lakhs (Previous year: Rs. Nil).

(b) Other commitmani (for current year and previous year) is for simple coupon rate @ 4% which will be payable only in case of redemption of OFCD and this will accrue at the time of
redempltlon (Also refer nole 18.1(b))

37 Contingent Liabllities

(a) During the year, the Campany has received demand from Income fax department for Rs. .98 lakhs for the year 2011-12 and Rs 16.97 lakhs for the year 2018-17. The Company has
fited appenl against order for the year 2011-12 and also pald Rs. 2 lakhs under the protest. The Company has also filed letter of rectification againsi order for the year 2016-17.

(b) Demand received for praperty tax (net of provision) of Rs.1,085.90 lakhs (Previous year: R3.1.085,90 lakhs) which has been conlestad by the Company. Furher, additional interest
Habllity, if any, will be detsrmined at the lime of oulcome of maller under dispule. (Refer note 27.1(b)).

{c) [n Iho earlier years, the Company had ived VAT from salés lax dopartment of Rs, 5B0.11 lakhs (including penally of Rs, 326,00 lakhs) fram depariment. |n the previous
year, the Company had filed appeal agains! the said demand and paid Re. 25.11 lakhs undar the profust, During the year, Company has paid diffsrential llability under VAT Amnesly
Schema 2019 and also filed larm for selllement of arrears under sajd amnesly scheme, Considaring this; no furlher amounl is payable by the Company against this damand.

(d) Demand from sales tax department for Luxury Tax of Rs. 20.91 lakhs (Previous year: Rs. 20.91 lakhs) and inlerest & penally of Rs. 23.88 iakhs (Previous year: Rs.23.68 lakhs). In the
previous yaar, the Company had filed appeal agalnst the sald order and also paid Rs.10 lakhe under the protest. Furiher, additional Interest liabilily, If any, will be datermined al the
{ime of outcome of matter undor dispuls.

In FY 17-18, the Company had received legal notice from customer (for claim of Rs. 12 Lakhs plus interest) which has been disputed by the Company. Pending outcome of malter, the
same has not been iicknowladyed as debt by the Company.

(e

The future cash outflows of matiers reporled under poinl 37 (a), (b}, (d) & (o) are determinable on receipt of decisions / judgments pending with forums / authorities.

38 There are no reportable segments under Ind AS-108 'Operating Segi as all the activilies relate to only one segment i.e. hospitality services. Furiher the management of the Company is
also reviewing the resulls / operations of the Company as single segment i e, hospitalily services.

39 Detalls of related party traneactions

A) Name of related parties

Holding Company (Ullimate Tha Phoenix Mills Limited (PML)
holding company}

Fellow Subisidiary Caompanias /| Alyssum Dvelopers Fvi.Lid.
Companies in which hokding Palladium Constructions Pvt Ltd
y is having sub i ! y Resources Pvt Lid

interest (only whara there are Offtent Developers Pvt Lid

[ I Sparkle One Mall Developers Pvi Lid
Istand Star Mall Davelopers Pyl Lidl
Entily having signifi Avinash Bhosale Infi ire Pvt.Lid. (ABIPL)
{influonce

Post Employment benefit plan [ Pallazzio Holels & Leisure Lid Employees’ Group Gratuity Scheme.

B) Transactions with related parties

For transaclions with related parties refer annexure 1
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Notes on financlal statement for the year ended 31st March 2020

40 Employee Beneflts:

(a) Bref description of the delined benefil plans and other long term benefits:

The Company provides for gratuity, a defined benefit retirement plan covering eligible employees. The Gratuity plan provides a lump sum payment fo vested employees al relirement,
death, incapacitation or fermination of employment, of an amount equivalenl lo 15 days salary for each completed year of service subjecl to a maximum of Rs. 20 lakhs Vesting occurs
upon completlon of five conlinuous years of service in accordance wilh Payment of Graluily Acl, 1972. The Company has funded its Gratully obligation under Group Graluity policy

managed by LIC

Leave benefits are payable to eligible employees who have earned leaves, during the employment and / or on separation as per the Company's policy and it is un-funded. Further
employess can utilize earned leaves balances againsi he absences.

{b) Assumptions used by actuary for amiving at lhe value of benefits of gratulty and leave :

Particulare 318t March 2020 31st March 2019
Discount rate 6.70% 7.75%
Expected rale of salary increase 0.00% for the [irsl year, 10%
5.00% for the nexl year
8 7.00% lhereafler|
Expected rale of return on assel 6.70% 7.75%
Allrition Rate 15% 15%
[ Martality Pre-ratirement India Assured Lives {2012-; 14) Inclin Assured Lives (2008-08)
The estimates of future salary i ) din take of inflation, seniority, promation and other supply and demand faclors in the employmenl
market.
The olher disclosures are tabulaled below, (Rs. in lakhs}
Partlculars 2019-20 2018-19
() Change In present value of defined beneflt Gratulty Leave benefits Gratuity Leave benefits
{Funded {Unfundad) {Funded) {
Prasent value of ohligation 227.20 230.33 178.43 208.77
Inlerest cosi 21.40 18.54 18.21 16.92
Current service cost 63,48 36.94 52.93 23.02
Benerls paid (28.51) (B2.02) (27.43) {63.70)
ial changes arising from ges in {34.29) B 8.41 -
essumgllons
Aciuarial changes arsing from changes in experl (36.62) (103.83) (1.35) 47.32
Prasent value of obligation at the end of the year 212.62 118.95| 227.20| 230.33]
{Rs. In lakhs)
2019-20 2018-19
Change in fair value of ssets during the year Gratulty {funded) Gratulty {funded)
Plan assots al Ihe beginning of ha year 57.46 75.25
Contribution « 10.12
Benefits paid during the year (28.51) (27.43)
Interest Incoms 4.30 574
Acluarial gains { (losses) 0.37 (6.23)
Fair value of plan assats ai the end of lhe yaar 33.60 57.46
{Rs. in lakhs)
2019-20 201819
(ill) Net asset / (Linbility) recognised in the balance Gratulty Leave benefits Gratuity Leave benefits
|sheat Funded) {Unfundad) {Fundad) {Unfunded)
Prosent value of obligation at the end of the year 212.62 119.85 227.20 230,33
Fair value of plan assets at the end of the year (33.60) - (57.46) -
Nat obligation af the end of fhe year 179.02 118.95| 169.74 230.33
{Ra. In lakhs)
[ 2018-20 201818
(v} Exp grised in 1o stak t of profit Gratuity Leave benefits Gratuity Loavo bonofits
) {Funded) {Unfundad) {Fundad) (Linfundad)
Current sarvice cost 83.45 30,94 5283 23.02
el interes( cosl 17.10 18,64 1247 16.82
Aclunrlal (Gains) / Losses | (103.83) - 47.32]
Net cost 80.55 48.35 85.40 87.26
{Rs.
{v) Recognlsed In other comprehensive Income for 2019-20 201819
the year
Acluarial changes arising from changes in financial (34.29) 641
Adtuarial changos assing from changes In expariance {36.62), (1.35)
Relurn ol plan assels excluding interest inco {0.37) 6523
Recognised in other comprahensive Incoma (71.27) 11.29]
(Rs, In lnkhs)
{vi} Maturity profile of defined benefit obligation 41st March 2020 31st March 2019
Wilhin Ihe nexi 12 months (next annual reporling pariod) 2481 25,99
Between 2 and 5 years 106.86 104.81
Between 8 and 10 years 9395 95.15
{Rs. in lskhs)
(vli) Quantitative sensitivity analysis for significant 31st March 2020 31st March 2019
nssumption is as below: (Increase | (decrease) on
p value of defined banofits obl at the end
of the yoar)
One percentage point incraase in discount rale 11,73
One percentage point decrease in disc B .08/
One parcentage point increasa in rate of salary 23
Ono percantage point decrease i rate of salary -11.34
One percentage point increase in employee lurover rale -1.42
Ona p ge paoinl In empl 4
rato

The above sensilivity analysls Is based on a change in an assumption while holding all other
ing the sensilivity of the defined benelit obligation lo significant actuarial assumplions the same method (projecled unil credit melhod)

When

may be

Ice, this is unlikely to occur, and changes in some of the

Inp

has bssn applied for calculating he dsfined benefit obligalion recognised within the Balance Sheet

As at 31st March 2020 and 31st March 2019, the plan assets have been primarily invested in Governmeni securilies. The Company expects to contribute Rs. 25 lakhs fo the gratulty

scheme in the nexl financial year.

Particulars | 215t Ma
surer Managed Funds |

reh 2020 [
100%]

st March 2019 |
100%
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(©

(@)

In the curment year, there is provision for short term compensated absences of Rs, 9.55 lakhs (Previous year Rs.19.2¢ lakhs). Cumulative outsianding balance of provision for short
term compensated absence is Rs. 29.73 lakhs (Previous year: Rs. 20.18 lakhs).

Defined coniributions plans

Amount of Rs. 245,28 lakhs (Previous year: Rs. 214.80 lakhs) is gnised as an exp and included in Employee beneli p as under the f ing defined
plans:
{Rs. In lakhs)
Particulars 2019-20 2018-19
Contribution 1o Provident Fund 223.06 185.69
Contribution fo Employee stale Insurance schame 21.82 28.45
Conlribution to Labour welfare schems 0.40 0.46
{Total 245,20 214.60

41 Disclosure under Ind AS 116 'Leases’

The Company had adopled Ind AS 116 'Leases’ effective from 1st April 2019, as notified by the Minisiry of Corporale Affairs in the Companies {Indian A i dard) Amendment
Rules, 2019. Ind AS 118 replaces Ind AS 17 'Leases’ and relaied inlerpretation and guidance. The adoplion of this standard did not have any impact on the proflls for the year,

()
[0}

(i)

As lessor

In accordance with the terms of the issue of non-convertible debeniures, the Company had given the debenlure holders a right to occupy cerlain premises of the hotel building. No
separate/additional consideration is receivable for lhe same. As slaled in nole 19 4, in (he previous year, the Company had converled NCD of Rs, 4 600 lakhs inlo 0.0001% OCD
aggregating to Rs. 4.600 lakhs and accordingly, righl to occupy cerlain portion of Company's premises by NCD holders was relinquished.

In ac with {he amang tered info by the Company, the Company has accounted for license fees of Rs, 408.99 lakhs (Previous year: Rs. 496.13 lakhs) [Including

amorlization of non-refundable security deposit of Rs. Nil (Previous year: Rs.111.11 lakhs) and contingent rent of Rs. 77,85 lakhs (Previous year: Rs, 74,89 lakhs)]

The minimum license fees receivable in next one year is Rs, 373.03 lakhs (Previous year: Rs. 325.50 lakhs) and later than one year and not later than five years is Rs. 306.36 lakhs
(Rs, 679,39 lakhs)

The gross camying amount and lated depreciatlon at the sheel date of the said premises is given below:
(Rs. In lnkhs)

Particulars Buildings Plant & Machinery | Furniture & Fixtures Total

Gross block

As at 31st March 2019 438.22 510 3226 475,59

As al 31st March 2020 438.22 510 3226 475,59

Depreclation

For FY 18-19 48.02 10.49 6.38 64.89

For FY 19-20 156.51 042 519 21,12

Accumulated depreciation:

As al 31st March 2019 56.95 0.24 20.76 77.96

As at 315l March 2020 72.47 0.66 2595 99.08

Net book value

As al 31st March 2019 381.27 4.86 11.50 397.63

As al 31st March 2020 AR5 78 444 631 476.51

(b) Aslessee

given to employees. For lease arrangement with lease terms of 12 months or less, the Company

The Company's lease assels primarily consist of leases for vehicles and
has applied the 'short-lerm lease’ recognilion exemption.

[Rs. in lakhs]
Partlculars A t
Interest expense on lease liabiltiss,
Expense relating lo short-term leases {included in ‘Administrative and olher expenses’ & 'Other 155,95

aperaling cost’)
|Expense relating to leases of low vaiue assets (included in ‘Adminisirative and other expenses' & v
'Other ing cost’)
Lease pavments debited 1o Iease liabilities .
Expense relating to varfable laase payments nol Included in the measuremeant of lease labilities; -
Income from subleasing right-of use assats, .
Toial cash oulflow of leases; Inc[ud[ng short term and low volue [pasas] 155,{£'

Gains or |osses arising from sale and leasaback {ransaclion;

42 Share based payment

The holding company has Issuad siock oplions under "Employees Stock Option Scheme 2007", The Compensation Commiitee of the holding company has granted options lo the certain
employees of the Company.

As per the scheme, options are vested to employees over a period of 5 years and once options are vested, it remains exerclsable for 3 years. When exercisable, each oplion entitles the
holder to purchase one share of holding company at an exercise price determined by the compensation commiltee on the grant date. The holding company has (he obligation to deliver the
shares and there is no obligation 1o deliver shares on lhe Company. Since the Company does not have an obligation to sellle the oplions, the options are treated as an equity-seliled plan.

The details of the plan are as lollows:

Particulars For the year For the year
ended ended
3 318t March 2018 |
22,800 25,000

Options outstanding at the beginning of the year (Nos)
Oplions granted during the year (Nos)

Optlions forfeited during the year (Nos) s
Opflions expired during the year (Nos})

Oplions exercised during the year (Nos)

Options outstanding at the end of the year (Nos) 18,550 22,800

Opllons vested and exerclsable at the end of lhe year (Nos) = -
333.90 333.90

Weighted average exercise price in Rs.
Remaining contraclual period

(4,25;)) (2,2(;0)

2 years 7 months | 3 years 7 months
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43 Earnings per share

Particulars For the year For the year andod
endad 31st March 2019
31et March 2020

Profit alter tax bul balore other comprehensive income {Rs. in 122247 6,461.57
fakhs)

Waighted average number of equlty shares - Basic EPS 53,18,918 53,18,918

Walghted average number of equilly shares - Diluted EPS 91,28,234 85,786,379

Nominal value of aquily share 100 100

P h 22.98 121.48

13.39 75,32

Nole: As per para 23 of Ind AS 33, datorily converiible |
lssued by the C: y has been idered for the cal

44 Disclosure as per Ind AS 12 ‘Income Taxes'

should be consldered for baslc EPS from the date of the
of basic EPS.

(Rs, in lakhs)

Particulars

Forthe year  For tha year endad
ended 318t March  31st March 2018
2020

A Statement of profit or loss and OCI
Current income tax:

Deferred lax credit / (chargs):

In respect of current year - deblted to P&L
In respect of eartier years - deblted to P&L
In respect of current year - credited to OCI
In respact of earlier years - cradited to OCI

Total Income tax expenses

B Reconcillation of Current Tax expenses:
Profit before lax
Applicable tax rate

Computed tax expenses

Impact of parmanent disallowance
Impact of temporary disallowance
Impact of tax rale change

Tax saving on cany forward lossess

C  Deferred tax recognised In statement of profit and Loss and OCl relates to the following:

Deferred tax assets:

Unabsorbud tax losses and Carry forward depreciatlon
Unamortizad key money Income

ltems covered under section 43B of Income Tax Act
Provision for doublful debis

Others

Deferred tax Nabllity:
Depreclation / Amoriization

Net deferred tax assets

D Reconcillation of deferred tax asset/ {liabllites):
Balance at the beginning of the year

Tax expenses / (incoms) during the year (including amount debited / credited to ocly

Balance al the closing of the year

Note : The Company has elacted In axercise the option permiited under Secilon 115BAA of the Income Tax Act, 1861 as Introducad b
2018. Accordingly, the applicabla corporale Income lex rale for the Company for the year ended 31st March 2020 and 31st M
provislon for tax is required to be made, as there is no taxable Income as per provisions of income Tax Acl, 1981 in the currs|
on the basis of new rale prescribed under Taxation Laws (Amendment) Ordinance, 2019,

year, the Company has d its deferred tax bal

(363.64) S
- 415.90
(17.04) 3
- (34.32)
(381.58) 481.58
(381.58) 381.58
1,565.81 6,045.68
2517% 34.94%
399.12 2,112,680
(67.54) {1,744,55)
137.00 110.39
108.75 2
(575.33) (478.44)
1,651.47 2,772.46
1,307.40 2,035.23
677.57 802.00
30.32 33.14
14.21 23.74
3,770.97 5,284.97
= 381,58
381.58 -
(381.58) 381.58
- Sﬂ!iﬁg

y the Taxation Laws (Amendmant) Ordinance,
arch 2010 is 25174 and 34.94% respoctively. No
ni year and In the pravious year, Further, In the curent
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48 FI lal <A g Classlfl & Falr value Measurement

(a) Financlal Instruments by category

Rs. In lnkhs

Sr. No Particulars 31st March 2020 31st March 2019
Amortised Cost FVTOCI FUTPL Amartised Cost FVTOCI FVTPL
A |Financial assets
() [investments
Equity Instrument - - 0.25 . - 0.25
Preference Shares 5.00 - - 5.00 - -
Govemmen Seouriies 0.80 - - 0.70 - .
() |Trade receivables 1,469.52 g . 1,706.33 - -
{ll) |Cash and cash equivalents 52548 - - 603.75 -
{iv) [Non-current financlal assets - Other
assets 2,764.53 B - 1,011.00 - -
(v) |Currenl financlal assets - Other
assets 200.73 « - 390.24 . -
Total financlal assets 4,950.08 - 0.26 3,717.02 - 0.26
B8 |Financlal liabllities
() |Borrowings 44,215.10 - B 40,67343 - -
(I}  [Trade Payables 2,001.16 : E 2,684.10 - .
(il |Non-current financial liabliltles - Other’
llabllllles 38.50 - . 18.50 - -
{iv) |Current financlal Mabllities - Other|
llabllties 2,737.99 - . 2,328.80 - -
Total financial ilabllitles 49,080.74 - - 54,682.93 . -

FVTOCI - Falr Valus Through Other Comprehenaive Incoma
FVTPL - Falr Value Through Profit or Loss

Bank guarantee:
Bank guarantees aggregating to:
()  Re.215.76 lakhs (Previous year: Rs. 251,61 lakhs) glven by the Company for EPCG license.
(i Rs. 13.30 lakhs (Previous year: Rs. 13 30 lakhs) glven by the Company {o D of Forelgn Trade for oblalning fiquor licenses.
()  Rs. 50 lakhs (Previous year: Rs. Nif) glven by the Company to Maharashtra Pollution Control Board.
()  Rs. 144.52 lakhs (Previous year: Rs. 141,89 lakhs ) given by the Company towards Tata Power Company Limited as a Securlty towards prompt payment.

(v)  Rs.8.77 lakhs (Prevlous year: Rs. 3.30 lakhs) given by {he pany to The Coll p 1dent of Slate Exclse
(v)  Rs. 5lakhs (Previous year: Rs. Nil) glven by the to The Muncipal Corp of Greater Mumbai
{b) Falr valuation techniques
The Company malntalns policies and p d fo value assets or llabltities using the best and most relevant dala avaliable. The fair values of the financlal assete and liabiliiles are Included at the
amount that would be recelved to sell an asset or pald to transfer a liabliity In an orderly I markel particip at the t date.
The following melhod and p are used to the fair values:
() The management assessed thal fair value of Trade recelvables, Cash and cash equivatents, Current financial assets - Other assets, Shorl term b gs, Trade Pay Current

liabllitles approximate their carrying amounls largely due to the short-term maturities of these Instruments. Further, (he management has assessed that falr value of Non-current financlal assets - Other assets,

Non-current financlal llabllitles - Other llabllitles, investments in Preference Shares, | InG Ities will be app. to thelr carrying amounts.
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(i)  Long-term varlable rale borrowings are evaluated by the Company based on the paramelers such as Interest rates, credil risk and olher risk characterslics. Falr value of varlable interest rate borrowings
approximate thelr carrying values.

{c) Fair value hlerarchy

The Company uses the following hierarchy for determining and disclosing the falr value of I by technique:

Level 1: Quoled (unadjusted) prices in active markels for identical assels or liabillties

Level 2: Olher techniques for which all inputs which have a significant effect on the recorded fair value are observable , either direclly or indirectly
Level 3: Techniques which use inputs that have a significant effect on Ihe recorded fair value thal are not based on observable market data

Item covered In nole 45(b)(i) & (ii) has not been disclosed In below table as iheir value approximales o ils camying value and they are measured al amorized cost.

S — {Rs. in lakhs)
il Dacuters Level 1 31sti:b:mhzzmo Level 3 Lavel 1 S“IIT::;“!N” Lavel 3
A |l In equity 1t
* Gost of Invesiment In equiy Instrumenls is Rs. 0.25 lakhs (Previous year Rs. 0.26 lnkhs). Ci q lhe lafily, the cosl of | has besn consldared as equivalenl falr value and hence no additional

disclosure has been made,

During the year ended 31s! March 2020 & 31st March 2018 there were no transfers belwsen level 1 & level 2 falr value measurements, and no transfer Inlo & oul of level 3 falr value measurements

46 Flnancial Risk Management

The Company has exposure lo 1he three risks from its use of financial Insiruments | . Credlt risk, Liquidity risk and Market risk, The Company's overall risk management programme focuses on the unpredictabliity of financial
markels and seeks to minimise potenilal adverse effects on the Company s rnancual performance Ths Company does not have any derivative financlal instrumenls, The Board of directors has overall responsibility for the

establishment of the company's risk it Rlsk Y are lodically to reflect changes in market conditions and company's activitles
(a) Market Risks :
Market Risk Is tha risk thal the fair value or future cash flows of a fi i wlll of gas in markel prices. The value of a financial Instruments may change as a result of changes In Interes!

rates, faraign currericy exchange rates, eqully prices and other market chariges that affect the market risk sensitive instrumants. Markat risk Is atiributable 1o all market risk senshive financial Instruments Including foreign
currency racalvable and payatiles and loans & advances elc. The Company Is exposed to markel risk primarlly related lo foreign exchange currency risk and interes rate risk,

()  Forelgn exchange curmnl:y risk

The Comp i y In Indlan Rupe, howaver, |t has I'orelnn Currency payable and recelvatie [malnly In USD] antl |s therefore, sxposed fo the said foreign exchange currency risk. The
Compuny does nat anter Into any lauwnrd being deri for tradirig or sf The Company did nol enler into any forward exchange confracts belng
il for hadging purposes during the year and In the previous year, Tho faliowing tabile analyses the foreign nurrancy risk from manelan_.r assils and liabilitkes as al balance sheol dale,

[Particulars Foreign 371st March 2020 31t March 2019
Currency Amount in Rs. In lakhs Amount In Rs. [n lakhs
FQC) FC
Trade payables usp 924,144 659660 567.96
HKD 2,15,556 20.88 19.03
Cash and cash aquivalant UsD 540 041 173
EURD . o 0.40
GBP 75 0.07 . -
HKD - > 1,000 0.09
5GD - - 122 0.06

(! i \&
(1= | MUMBAN .
\ *\ C), ¥

\

)\
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U]

The following table d the itivity In the foreign y lo the Indlan rupee with all other variables held constant, The Impact on company's proftt after lax and on olher oqulty due to change In fair
valus of financlal assets and llabilities is given below :
(Rs. in takhs)
Particulars [Increase / (Decrease} In profit after| Increase / (Decrease) In other

tax equity
318t March 2020| 31st March 2019 | 31st March 2020 31st March 2019

USD sensitivity
INRI UISD - Increase by 1% (6.98) (5.96) (8.96) (5.96)
INR/ USD - Decrease by 1% 8.96 5.96 6.98 598

Interest rate risk
The Company's primarily interest rate sk arises from borrawings at varlable Interest rates. Borrowings taken at variable rale xpose (he company to cash flow Interest rate risk. With all other variables held

1he following lable the impact of interes rale risk. The impact on company's profit after tax and on other aquity due to change In interest rate Is given below :
Rs. In fakhs|
Particulars Increase / (Decrease) in profit after]  Increase I {Decrease) In other
tax equlty

318t March 2020 315t March 2019 | 31st March 2020] 318t March 2018

(478,32) (424.43) (478.32)

Increase by 1% (424,43
478.32 424 43 478.32

Decrease by 1% 424.43

The abeve amaun 1a excluding the outstanding inerest frae loan,

{b) CreditRisk:
Credlt risk Is the rigk of fl loss to Ihe Ci if a cust or party to a fi I fall o mest its contractual obligations. The Company is exposed malnly to credlt risk arlses from cash and cash

Y
equivalents, deposil with banks and oulstanding trade receivables.

Trade and unblfled
The Company extends cradil to customers In normal course of busl . The Company factor such as credlt track reporl of cusiomer, Industry practice, payment Irack racord etc. The Company has
also taken advances and securily deposits.from Its customar which mitigate the credit rlsk to an extenl. The Company evaluates the concentration of risk with respecl to rada lvables and unbliled

as |ow, as 15 customers belongs to sevoral Industries
The agelng of {rade recelvable along with expected loss rata is as below :

{Rs. In lakhs)
Particulars Ageing Total
Upto 6 months More than 6
maonths

As ot 315t March 2020
Sacurad - - -
Unsacurad 1.564.33 162.08 1,766.39
Total receivables and unbilled revenue 1,664.33 192,08 1,766.39
f for doubtful recelvables and exp d credH losses 120.46
Net Recelvables 1,664,33 1682.06 1,635.93
Expected loss rate * 6.86%
Aa at 31st March 2019
Sacured - p =
Unsecurad 2,084.82 98.37 2,183.19
Total and unbill 2,084.82 98.37 2,183.19
for recel and expecled credil losses 108.30
Net Recelvables and unbllled revenue 2,084.82 98,37 2,076.89
Expoctod loss rate * 4.87%|

* Expected loss rate inchudes boll allowance made based nssossed cradil risk on an individual bass antd axpectod loss basad on halel policy.
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Movement In expected crodit loss and allowance for doubtful recoivablos : khs

{Rs, in lakhs)
Particulars 31st March 2020 31st March 2019
A for | Exp credit for p credit
doubtful loss doubtful loss
recelvahles
63.23 A3.07 14.10 2812
Addition lo allowance for doubliul rocelvabies 50,45 . 53.96 14.95
(Adjusted anainst bad debis {32.30, = {463} -
- (4.00) - -
81.39 | 39,07 63.23 43.07 |
{llj  Cashand cash eq and Bank dep
Thi Company considers factors such as track record, size of | market rep and sarvice i s&iect Ine bariks with which bal and dep are The balance and fixed
dap arn y with the banks with whom the Company has availed the credit faciitles: Further the ¢ pany doas nol ignli cash In hand other than those required for its day to
day . G ing the sama, the Company s nat d 1o exg credil loss of cash-and cish squlvalent and bank deposits.
{c) Llquidity Risk :
Liquidity risk is defined as the risk that tha Company will not be able to settie or mest its li] on lime. The Company refles on mix of borrowings, capital and operating cash flows to meet its needs for funde. The
table below provides detalls regarding the remaining coniractual maturitles of financial llabilitis at the reporting date based on iha undlscountad payments.
{Ra. In lakhs)
Particulars Less than 1 year 11to & year Above § years Total
As at 318t March 2020
Borrowings 1,949.68 2,946.25 39,407 85 44,304.08
Trade Payables 2,001.18 . . 2,091.16
Other Financlal llabllities 2,649.01 36.50 . 2,885.51
As ot 318t March 2018
Borrowings 1,861.00 - 47,812.43 49,673.43
‘Trade Payables 2,664,10 B - 2,664,10
Other Financial l'abiltties 232890 16.50 - 2,345.40

Un-ulillsed overdraft facllity is Rs. 3,683.28 lakhs (Previous year Rs. 1,300 lakhs). The sald amount Is excluding the amount of Rs, Nil (Previous year Rs. 1,200 lakhs) which Is not allowed to be utllised as It Is blocked
agalnst Debt Service Ressrve Account.
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The table below p details reg g the '] | of fl assels al ihe reporting date based on the undiscounted payments.
{Rs. In lakhs)
Partioulars Less than 1 year 110 5 yoar Above § years Total

As at 3181 March 2020

Investment - - 605 6.05
Other financlal assets 200.73 2,754.53 - 2,955.28
Trade racelvables 1,489.51 - - 1.469.61
Cash and cash equivalents 525.48 - 525.48
As ot 318t March 2019

Investment - - 5.95 5.65
Other financlal assets 380.24 1,011.00 - 1.401.24
Trade recelvables 1,706.33 - - 1,708,33
Cash and cash equlvalents 603.75 . - 603.76

47 Capltal management

Issued equity capltal, convartible Instruments, share premium and all other equily reserves attributable o the aquily sheareholdars of the Company. The
the

For the purpose of the Company's caplial caplial inch
primary objective of the Company's capital Is to {
q of the

s value, The C

and makes

The company monitors caplial using gearing ratlo, which I3 total debt divided by iotal capital plus debt.

Rs. in lakhs

Partlculars

As at

As at

31st March 2020 | 31st March 2019

Total Debt {Including Interest on debt)
Tolal Capltal (iolal equity shareholder's fund - deferred tax assets)

Total Capltal and Debt

Gearing Ratlo

44,625.63 49,821.18
36,818.27 35,156.48
B1443.01 BA.076.64

54.70% 56.63%

lis capital

In

s In light of

conditions and the
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48 Dlsclosures for *Statement of Cash Flows' as per Ind AS 7

(a) Aggregate nel inflow on account of direct lax (including interest on income tax refund) is Rs. 369,84 lakhs (Previous year: Rs. 484 .51 lakhs)

In the previous year, Non-convertible debunlures of Rs. 4,600 lakhs was co

nverted into Oplionally Convertible Debantures (OCD) Series J aggregaling o Rs. 4.600 lakhs. These ilem

®) do not involve any cash flow and hence samte was nol considered for preparing cash flow in the previous year.
(€} The changes in liabilities arising from financing aclivilies are as follows:
(R, in lakha)
Partlculars As at 31st March Cash Non-cash changes | As at 31st March
2019 inflow/(outflow) 2020
(net)
Temn loans 47,832.16 (5,389.08) - 42,443 08
Unsecured loans 1,861.00 - 1,861.00
Compulsory convertible =
e 4,118.92 - 4,118.92
Oplionally fully convertible R .
e 21,980.91 21,980.91
Optionally convertinle
datanluies 4,600.00 - 4,600.00
Total 80,392.99 {5,389.08) - 75,003.91
Particulars As at 31st March Cash Non-cash changes | As at 31st March
2018 inflow/({outflow) {Refer note (b) 2019
(net) above)
Temm loans 56,296.34 (8,464.18) - 47,832.16
MWon-convarlible dabeniures 4,600.00 - (4,600.00) -
Unsecured loans 1,861.00 - - 1.B81.00
Compulsary converlible 4118 92 s = 4118.92
21,980 91 - 21,980.91
- 4,600.00 4,600.00
88,857.17 (8,464.18) - 80,392.99
49 Covid -19 outbreak has baon d asap by the WHO, subseq ly the G of India has inlliated a series of measures to contain the outbreak, including imposing
multiple 'lock-tdowns’ across the country, from March 24, 2020. This has posad challenges to the business of the Company, As per the directives of the Central/State Governments it was
d o close all busi tivilies during the lockd period,
The C has { the p ial impact of Covid-19 on its capital and financinl rasourcas, profitabilily, liquidlty position, ability to service deb! falling due for payment within naxt 12

manths and ather financing arangements, supply chain and damand for Ils services, In order to cansarve
per the RB! guidelines on prncipal & interest for a period of B montha. The curmant liquidiy position cantin
capltal limits fo maet any of iis lulure cash flow requirements. Various cost ratianalization measures ha

uss lo be stable and
ve boen undertaken 2t the holel including bul not limited fo energy conservation,

ils cash flows the Company has avalled

offared by banking parinars as
i | d unutiised working

and il has

50

]

-

52

&3

resource deployment and deforral of cartain non-critical upgrades.

The C Impact of Covid-18 on the canrying valus of proparty, plant & squipment, trade receivables, Inventories, and other current assets appsaring in
the financlal statemants of the Company, In d pifig the I and refating to the fulure ralntles in the I conditions b of this ic, the Company
as at tho date of approval of those Financial statemonts has used intemal and extemal sources of inf fon and based on curren! eslimaies, expects lo recover (he camylng amounts of
these assets. The impacl of the global health pandemic may be different from that eslimated as at fhe date af of these fi ial stal and the C y will continue lo closely
monilor any malerial changes to future economic condilions.

y has also d the p

PP ¥

The Company expecls the hotel to bocome oparational in phased manner as the demand for its services is expected lo pick up albeit at a slower pace once lockdown is lifled, Demand
oulloak for second half conlinues to remain goed mainly on aecount of demand from corparaies and postponement of large, luxury weddings during March 2020 (o June 2020 to the period
betwaan October 2020 and March 2021

Corporate soclal responsibility

As per Section 135 of the Companies Act 2013, effective curent year Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR} is applicable to the Company. Gross amount required o be spenl by the
Company during the year is Rs. Nil considering thal the Company is not having profit u/s 198 of Ihe Companies Act 2013 due to set off of carried forward losses.

Additional Information as required by para 7 of General Inslructions for preparation of Statement of Profit and Loss (other than already disclosed above) are either Nil or Not Applicable

y's gement has developed a syslem of maintenance of informalion and documents a required by the Transfer Pricing Legislation under Section 92 to Section 92F of the
Incoms Tax Acl, 1961, The Company has represenlad that international i with d anlerprises are al arm's lenglh and transfer pricing legislation will not have an impacl on
the financial statements parlicularly on the amount of tax expense for the period and the amount of provision for tax at the period end

The Comp

Previous year figures have been regrouped/rearranged wherever necessary

As per our audit report of even date

For N. A, Shah Assoclates LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 1165§0W [ 100149W
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Pariner Director
Membership No. : 117080 N:O7EBG435 DIN:01602690

Place: Mumbai

Dale:2 6 JUN mm

~<ERED ACCOWS

T

SC L oy, SI2

Prashant Khandelwal
Chief Financial Officer

Place: Mumbai

o 25 JUN 2020

e e

Company Secratary

M. No. ACS 31131



Pallazzlo Hotels and Leisure Limited
Notes on financial statement for the year ended 31st March 2020

ﬂnnoxura 1@ TlIllﬂEﬂDlll with related partias (Also refor note 39 (R, In takhs)
Helding Company Faliow Subsidiary Corfipanies I [ Entity tiaviiig Signiicant mtsmlwmum Bepert “Taml
i | Companias In which liolding Influengae plan il

sibstantial
2018-20 201848 2018-19 201920 | 201018 2018-20 201819 2018-20
10952 72.86 - . - - - . 109 52 72.86
S 7.79 = = = 2 - - - 7.79
- = = 1.00 - - - - - 1.00
B 2,300.00 = - - 2,300,060 - - - 4500.06
181,16 3520 31.55 0.48 [ 30869 - - 28270 (5]
ENE] 10.60 - - - - - - 5.73 10.80
Contibidion 1o E & Group Gratudy Scheme - - - - - - - 1012 - 1012
" i BT _Holding
Asat st

Outstanding Balangces;
Unsecuited losn 1,881.00 1,861.00 - - - - = - 1.861.00 1,861.00
473 30.03 1817 1.64 - 2740 . - 2240 50.07
.60 1787 - - . - - - 9,50 1767
84737 847.37 - - - - - - 847397 B473T
514 87 514,87 = - 10128 10128 - - 616,15 516.15
61518 615.18 - - 22770 227.78 - - 84257 54207
N = - - 40770 407.70 - - 40770 407.70
76844 760.44 - - - - E - 760,44 Tag44
= - = - 63529 635.20 - - 63520 63520
16,048.07 16,048.07 5 E 5,004 05 593485 - - 21,880 62 21,080,062
2,300.00 2,300.00 - - 2,300,00 2,300.00 - - 4,600.00 4,600.00

** Diaclozed al face value

Notes:
1) As per the hotel operating agreement, PML and ABIPL had given unconditional and Irrevocable guarantee on behalf of the Company. The said guarantees are oulstanding in the current year and were also outstanding in the previous year,

2) Refer note 19.1.3 In respecl of security given by PML / ABIPL on behalfl of the Company and for pledging of shares of the Company by PML 7 ABIPL,

3) The CFO, CS and Manager who have been designated as Key managerial persons as per secllon 203 of the Ci ies Act are not as key p under Ind AS 24,
4) Holding company has granted ESOP 1o the employee of lhe Company, Alse refer nole 3.12

5) Business promalion expenses incurred by the promolers et hotel are borne by the Company as these expanses are Incurred for promotlon of hotel business end the same are nol reported above

6) Reler nole 19.4 in respect of p ion for pi on red ion of NCD.,

7) Terms and Condillons:

a) Reler nole 18,1 for lerms of the OCD, OFCD & CCD issued to related parlies,

b} Terms & condilions of service provided al hotel to the related parties is in d wilh the operaling ag entered with hotel operator
¢) All outslanding balances are payable in cash excepl in respecl of OCD and OFCD which are expected lo be converled into equily.




